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25th  ANNUAL REPORT 2014-15 

 

NOTICE 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 25th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members of SPHERE GLOBAL SERVICES LIMITED (the 
Company) will be held on Wednesday, 30th September, 2015 at 02.00 p.m at ICWAI Bhavan, Beside Dena Bank, Sanath Nagar, 
Hyderabad, Telangana 500018 to transact the following business: 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS 

1. To consider and adopt: 
 
a)  the Audited financial statements of the company for the financial year ended  31st March 2015, the Reports of the Board 

of Directors and Auditors thereon. 
b) the audited consolidated financial statements of the company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2015. 

 
2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Ramakrishna Bhaskar (DIN: 01620392), who retires by rotation, and being eligible offers 

himself for re-appointment. 
 

3. To ratify the appointment of M/s. Niranjan and Narayan, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 005899S ) as approved 
by Members at the 24th Annual General Meeting as Statutory Auditors of the company, to hold office for a period of 3 years 
until the conclusion of  27th  Annual General Meeting, (subject to ratification at every AGM) and to fix their remuneration for 
the financial year ending March 31, 2016 
 
 

SPECIAL BUSINESS 
4. APPOINTMENT OF  MRS. SUNEETA  VISHNUPANTHULU  AS INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifications, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 “RESOLVED THAT Mrs. Suneeta  Vishnupanthulu (DIN: 01550771),  who was appointed as an Additional Director with effect 
 from 24/03/2015on the Board of the Company in terms of Section 149, 152, 160 and 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
 Articles of Association of the Company and who holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting and in respect of 
 whom a notice has been received from a member in writing, under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 along with 
 requisite deposit, proposing her candidature for the office of Independent Director, be and is hereby appointed as an 
 Independent director of the company, to hold office as such for a period of 5 (five) consecutive years, with effect from the date 
 of appointment of additional director and that she shall not be liable to retire by rotation.” 

 
5. TO APPOINT MR. S SUDHAKIRAN REDDY  AS DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifications, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT Mr. S Sudhakiran Reddy (DIN: 01436242) who was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company 

with effect from  03rd October, 2014 on the Board of the Company in terms of Section 149, 152, 160 and 161 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of the Company  and who holds office upto the date of this Annual General Meeting and 
in respect of whom a notice has been received from a member in writing, under section 160  of the Companies Act, 2013 along 
with requisite deposit, proposing his candidature for the office of director, be and is hereby appointed as Director of the 
Company.” 

 
6. TO APPOINT MR. S SUDHAKIRAN REDDY  AS MANAGING DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifications, the following resolution as an Special Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 196, 197, 198,203 read with Schedule V and all other applicable 
provisions, if any of the Companies Act, 2013 including any statutory modifications or re-enactments thereof and subject to 
such consents and approvals from any authorities, as may be necessary, from time to time, the company hereby approves  the 
appointment of and remuneration payable to Mr. S Sudhakiran Reddy (DIN: 01436242) as Managing Director of the Company 
for a period of three years w.e.f. 14.10.2014 as per the terms and conditions as stated in the explanatory statement to this  
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resolution, with liberty to the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as the “the Board” which term shall be deemed to 
include any committee which the Board may constitute to exercise powers, including the powers conferred by this resolution) 
to alter and vary the terms and conditions of appointment and/or remuneration as may be agreed to between the Board and 
Mr. S Sudhakiran Reddy, subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. ” 
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the remuneration as stated in the explanatory statement to this resolution, shall be paid and 
allowed as minimum remuneration to Mr. S Sudhakiran Reddy during the continuance of his tenure as Managing Director, 
notwithstanding the  absence or inadequacy of profits in any financial year  
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or 
expedient to give effect to this resolution.” 

 
7. TO PAY REMUNERATION TO  MR.RAMAKRISHNA BHASKAR AS WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifications, the following resolution as an Special  Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section  197, 198,203 read with Schedule V and all other applicable 
provisions, if any of the Companies Act, 2013 including any statutory modifications or re-enactments thereof consent of the 
members be and is hereby accorded for payment of remuneration to Mr.Ramakrishna Bhaskar, Whole –time Director not 
exceeding Rs. 24,00,000 p.a  w.e.f 1st October,2015 
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of absence or inadequacy of profits in any year during his tenure, Mr. Ramakrishna 
Bhaskar be paid minimum remuneration as provided in Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.” 
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or 
expedient to give effect to this resolution.” 
 

8. TO PAY REMUNERATION TO MR. PRAKASH TRIPATHI AS WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifications, the following resolution as an Special  Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section  197, 198,203 read with Schedule V and all other applicable 
provisions, if any of the Companies Act, 2013 including any statutory modifications or re-enactments thereof consent of the 
members be and is hereby accorded for payment of remuneration to Mr.Prakash Tripathi , Whole –time Director not 
exceeding Rs. 24,00,000 p.a.  1st October,2015 
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of absence or inadequacy of profits in any year during his tenure, Mr. Prakash 
Tripathi be paid minimum remuneration as provided in Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.” 
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or 
expedient to give effect to this resolution.” 
 

9. BOARD OF DIRECTORS TO MAKE INVESTMENT IN EXCESS OF THE PRESCRIBED LIMITS 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifications, the following resolution as an Special  Resolution: 
 
"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 186 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the rules made there under (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof) and enabling provisions 
in the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the company and subject to such approvals, consents, 
permissions as may be necessary in this regard, consent of the company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors 
(hereinafter referred to as the “Board” which expression shall also include a committee thereof) to (a) give any loan to any 
person or other body corporate (b) give any guarantee or provide security in connection with a loan to any other body 
corporate or  person; and (c) acquire by way of subscription, purchase or otherwise, securities of any other body corporate (i) 
upto an aggregate amount not exceeding Rs. 100 Crores or (ii) 60% of the aggregate of the paid-up share capital and free 
reserves and securities premium account; or (iii) 100% of its free reserves and securities premium account, whichever is 
higher, on such terms and conditions, as the Board may think fit.” 
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts and deeds as may be required to give 
effect to the above resolution from time to time." 
 

10. TO ISSUE SHARES UNDER  ESOPS SCHEME 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifications, the following resolution as a Special Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions contained in the Memorandum and articles of Association and pursuant 
to the provisions of section 62, and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,2013 (``the Act” ) and the 
provisions contained in the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 (``the 
Regulations”) and such other applicable laws (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment of the Act or the 
Regulations, for the time being in force ) and subject to such other approvals, permissions and sanctions as may be necessary 
and subject to such conditions and modifications as may be prescribed or imposed while granting such approvals, permissions 
and sanctions which may be agreed by the Board of Directors of the Company herein after referred to as`` the Board’’ which 
terms shall be deemed to include any committees thereof, including the Nomination and Remuneration Committee which the 
Board might constitute (hereinafter referred to as ``the Committee”) to exercise its powers, including the powers conferred by 
this resolution), consent of the members of the company be and is hereby accorded to the Board, to introduce, offer, issue, 
and allot up to 10,00,000 Equity Shares, from time to time in one or more tranches to of for  the benefit of employees who are 
in permanent employment of the company and its Subsidiaries whether working in India or out of India, including directors of 
the company, as may from time to time be allowed to be eligible for the benefits under the provisions of applicable laws and 
Regulations prevailing form time to time (all such persons are hereinafter collectively referred to as ``Employees”) under a 
Scheme titled ``SGSL Employees Stock Option Scheme-2015”,(hereinafter referred to as the ``SGSL ESOP’S -2015”), on such 
terms and conditions as may be fixed or determined by the nomination and remuneration committee in accordance with the 
provisions of the law or Regulations issued by the relevant authority. 
 
 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to make any modifications, change(s), variations(s), 
alteration(s) or revision(s) in the terms and conditions of ``SGSL ESOP’S -2015” from time to time including, but not limited to, 
amendment(s) with respect to vesting period and schedule, exercise price, exercise period, eligibility criteria or to suspend, 
withdraw, terminate or revise “SGSL ESOP’S -2015” 
 
 RESOLVED FURTHER  THAT in case of any corporate action(s) such as rights issues, bonus issues, merger and sale of division 
of the Company and others, the Board / Nomination and Remuneration Committee is authorized to do all such acts, deeds, 
matters and things as it may deem fit in its absolute discretion and as permitted under applicable laws, so as to ensure that fair 
an equitable benefits under the Scheme are passed on to the Employee. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all the new equity shares to be issued and allotted as aforesaid shall rank pari passu including 
dividend inter se with the then existing equity shares of the Company in all respects. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to take necessary steps for listing of the Securities allotted 
under ``SGSL ESOP’S -2015” on the Stock Exchanges as per the provisions of the Listing Agreements with the Stock Exchanges 
concerned, the Guidelines and other applicable laws and regulations. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in case the Equity Shares of the Company are either sub-divided or consolidated, then the number 
of Shares to be allotted and the exercise price payable by the Option grantees under the Plan shall automatically stand 
reduced or augmented, as the case may be, in the same proportion as the present face value of Rs. 10 per Equity Share shall 
bear to the revised face value of the Equity Shares of the Company after such sub-division or consolidation, without affecting 
any other rights or obligations of the said allottees. 
 
 RESOLVED  FURTHER  THAT for the purpose  of giving effect to any creation, offer; issue, allotment of securities, the Board 
be and is hereby authorized on behalf of the Company to evolve, decide upon and bring in to effect the Scheme and make any 
modifications, changes, variations, alterations or revisions in the said Scheme from time to time in its sole discretion in 
conformity with the provisions of the Act, the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and any other 
applicable laws or to suspend, withdraw or revive the Scheme from time to time as may be specified by any statutory authority 
and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may in its absolute discretion deem fit or necessary or desirable for such 
purpose and with power on behalf of the Company to settle any questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in this regard 
without requiring the Board to secure any further consent or approval of the members  of the Company. 
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to delegate all or any powers conferred herein to 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee or such other Committee, with power to further delegate to any 
Executives/Officers of the Company to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as also to execute such documents, writings 
etc., as may be necessary in this regard”. 
 

11. RATIFICATION OF RESOLUTION PASSED AT THE EXTRA-ORDINARY GENERAL MEETING HELD ON  15.06.2015 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifications, the following resolution as a Special Resolution 
 
RESOLVED THAT the members do and hereby ratify the  below resolution passed at the Extra –Ordinary General Meeting held 
on 15.06.2015 as required by the Bombay Stock Exchange at the time of granting of the In-Principle Approval. 
 
FURTHER RESOVED THAT pursuant to Section 62(1)(c), Section 42 and other applicable provisions, if any of the Companies 
Act,2013 and rules framed there under (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in 
force) and enabling provisions in the Memorandum & Articles of Association of the Company and the Listing agreement 
entered into by the Company with the Stock Exchange where the shares of the Company are listed and subject to approvals, 
consents, permissions and /or sanctions of any other authorities/institutions and subject to such conditions as may be 
prescribed by any of them while granting such approvals, consents, permissions and sanctions and which may be agreed to by 
the Board of directors (herein referred to as the “BOARD” which terms shall be deemed to include any committee which the 
Board may have constituted  or herein after constitute to exercise its powers including the powers conferred by this 
resolution),the Board be and is hereby authorized to create, offer, issue, allot and deliver in one or more tranches upto 
10,00,000(Ten Lakh) warrants on a preferential basis to persons mentioned in the explanatory statement entitling the holder 
of each warrant to apply for and obtain the allotment of one equity share against each warrant(herein referred to as 
“Warrants”), in such manner and at such price, terms and conditions as may be determined by the Board in accordance with 
the provisions of Chapter VII of the SEBI(ICDR)Regulations. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT aforesaid issue of Warrants shall be subject to the following terms and conditions:  
 
The proposed allottees of Warrants shall, on the date of allotment of Warrants, pay an amount equivalent to at least 25% of 
the exercise price determined in compliance with the provisions of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2009.  
 
The balance 75% of the exercise price shall be payable on or before the conversion of said Warrants into Equity Shares, within 
a maximum permissible period of 18 months from the allotment thereof.  
 
 The proposed allottees of Warrants will be entitled to apply for and obtain allotment of one equity share of face value of Rs. 
10(Rupees Ten) each issued at a premium of Rs. 40 (Rupees 40) of the Company against each Warrant at any time after the 
date of allotment but on or before the expiry of 18 (Eighteen) months from the date of allotment thereof, in one or more 
tranches. 
 
Warrants and/ or the equity shares to be allotted upon conversion shall be under lock in for such periods as may be prescribed 
by the SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009.  
 
Warrants so allotted under this resolution shall not be sold, transferred, hypothecated or encumbered in any manner during 
the period of lock-in as provided under SEBI (ICDR) Regulations except to the extent and in the manner permitted there under.   
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT  the “Relevant Date” in relation to the issue of warrants in accordance with the SEBI(ICDR) 
Regulations would be May 15, 2015 being the date 30 days prior to the date of passing of this resolution. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT  the resultant equity shares to be allotted on conversion of warrants in terms of this resolution 
shall rank pari- passu in all respects with the then equity shares of the Company. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above, the Board be and is hereby authorized on behalf of 
the Company to take all such actions and do all such deeds, matters and things as it may ,in its absolute discretion, deem 
necessary, desirable or expedient to the issue or allotment of such warrants and listing thereof with the Stock Exchange as 
appropriate and to resolve and settle all questions and difficulties that may arise in the proposed issue, offer and allotment, 
utilization of issue proceeds and to do all such acts, deeds and things in connection therewith and incidental thereto as the 
Board at its absolute discretion deem fit, without being required to seek any further consent or approval of the Members or  
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otherwise to the end and intent that they shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto expressly by the authority of this 
resolution. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the board be and is hereby authorized to delegate all or any of the powers herein conferred to any 
Directors/Officers of the Company to give effect to the aforesaid resolution. 
 
 
12. TO INCREASE IN THE BORROWING POWERS OF THE COMPANY 
 To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as a Special Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 180(1)(c) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended from 
time to time, the consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred 
to as the “Board” which term shall include any committee thereof for the time being exercising the powers conferred on the Board by 
this Resolution) for borrowing from time to time, any sum or sums of monies, which together with the monies already borrowed by 
the Company (apart from temporary loans obtained or to be obtained from the Company’s bankers in the ordinary course of 
business), may exceed the aggregate of the paid-up capital of the Company and its free reserves, that is to say, reserves not set apart 
for any specific purpose, provided that the total outstanding amount so borrowed shall not at any time exceed the limit of Rs.100 
crores.” 
 
 “RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board be and is hereby authorized and empowered to arrange or settle the terms and conditions on 
which all such monies are to be borrowed from time to time as to interest, repayment, security or otherwise howsoever as it may 
think fit and to do all such acts, deeds and things, to execute all such documents, instruments and writings as may be required. 

 
            13.  ADOPTION OF AMENDED ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION      

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special Resolution:  
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 14 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Rules made there under including any statutory modifications(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force, the draft form 
of the revised Articles of Association submitted to this meeting, be and are hereby approved and adopted in substitution and to the 
entire exclusion of the regulations contained in the existing Articles of Association of the Company.  
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the any one of the Directors and the Company Secretary of the Company be and is hereby severally 
authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things and to take all such steps as may be necessary for the purpose of giving effect to this 
resolution.”  

By Order of the Board of Directors 
for SPHERE GLOBAL SERVICES LIMITED 

(formerly known as Color Chips (India) Limited) 
 

sd/- 
Akshita Surana 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
Membership Number: A32571 

 
 Registered Office: 
 Plot No. A-52,Road no.70Journalist Colony,  
 Jubilee Hills -500033,  
 Hyderabad, Telangana, 
 Tel: +91-40-2355 2284/85/86  
 Fax: +91-40-2355 2283 
 CIN: L36999TG1990PLC011129 
 Website: www.sphereglobal.in 
 Email: cs@sphereglobal.in 
 

 Date: 05.08.2015 

 Place: Hyderabad 
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NOTES 
 
1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (THE “MEETING”) IS ENTITLED TO 

APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON A POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF / HERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A 
MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. THE INSTRUMENT APPOINTING THE PROXY SHOULD, HOWEVER, BE DEPOSITED AT THE 
REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN FORTY-EIGHT HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE 
MEETING.  
 
A PERSON CAN ACT AS A PROXY ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING FIFTY AND HOLDING IN THE AGGREGATE NOT 
MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS. A MEMBER 
HOLDING MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS MAY 
APPOINT A SINGLE PERSON AS PROXY AND SUCH PERSON SHALL NOT ACT AS A PROXY FOR ANY OTHER PERSON OR 
SHAREHOLDER.  

 
2. The business set out in the Notice will be transacted through electronic voting system and the Company is providing facility for 

voting by electronic means. Instructions and other information relating to Remote e-voting are given in this Notice under Note No. 
29. The Company will also send communication relating to Remote e-voting which inter alia would contain details about User ID 
and password along with a copy of this Notice to the members, separately.  

 
3. During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the meeting and ending with the conclusion 

of the meeting, members would be entitled to inspect the proxies lodged, at any time during the business hours of the Company, 
provided not less than 3 days’ written notice is given to the Company.  

 
4. A Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, relating to the Special Business to be transacted at the 

Meeting is annexed hereto.  
 
5. Shareholders are requested to bring their copy of annual report to the Meeting. In accordance with the provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 & SEBI Guidelines, only abridged standalone and consolidated annual accounts for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2015 are circulated. Any member desirous of having a copy of detailed accounts may apply to the Company and copies 
thereof will be available for reference at the venue of the Meeting.  

 
6. Members are requested to bring their attendance slip along with their copy of Annual Report to the meeting. In case of joint 

holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names will be entitled to vote.  
 
7. Brief details of Directors seeking re-appointment / appointment at the Annual General Meeting scheduled to be held on 30th 

September, 2015 (Pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement) forms part of the notice.  
 
8. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books will remain closed from 23rd September, 2015 to 30th September,2015 (both 

days inclusive).  
 
9. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting are requested to send a certified 

copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.  
 
10. The members who have not surrendered their old share certificates (Issued by the then M/s. Color (chips) India Limited, now 

known as Sphere Global Services Limited, under the change of name) are requested to surrender their old share certificates to M/s. 
Sphere Global Services Limited  at their registered office : A-52, Road no. 70,Journalist Colony, Jubliee Hills, Hyderabad- 500033 
obtain their new share certificates of this Company.  

 
11. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their holding to dematerialized form to eliminate all 

risks associated with physical shares and for ease in portfolio management. Members may contact the Company or Registrar and 
Share Transfer Agent of the Company, for assistance in this regard.  

 
12. No Dividend on equity shares as recommended by the Board of Directors for the financial year ended March 31, 2015. 
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13. a)  The members who are holding shares in physical form are requested to intimate any change in their address with pin code 

immediately either to the Company or to the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.  
b) The members who are holding shares in demat form are requested to intimate any change in their address with pin code 
 immediately to their Depository Participants. 

 

14. Non-Resident Indian Members are requested to inform  M/s. Venture Capital and Corporate Investments Private Limited, 
immediately of:  

 
a) Change in their residential status on return to India for permanent settlement.  

 
b) Particulars of their bank account maintained in India with complete name, branch, account type, account number and address 

of the bank with pin code number, if not furnished earlier.  
 
15. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) vide circular ref no. MRD/DoP/CIR-05/2007 dated April 27, 2007, made PAN the 

sole identification number for all participants transacting in the securities market, irrespective of the amount of transaction. In 
continuation of the aforesaid circular, it is hereby clarified that for securities market transactions and off market/private 
transactions involving transfer of shares of listed companies in physical form, it shall be mandatory for the transferee(s) to furnish a 
copy of their PAN card to the Company / RTAs for registration of such transfer of shares.  

 
16. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India (vide its circular nos. 17/2011 and 18/2011 dated April 21, 2011 and April 

29, 2011 respectively), has undertaken a ‘Green Initiative in Corporate Governance’ by allowing paperless compliances and 
recognizing delivery of Notices / Documents / Annual Reports, etc., to the shareholders through electronic medium. In view of the 
above the Company will send Notices / Documents / Annual Reports, etc., to the shareholders through email, wherever the email 
addresses are available; and through other modes of services where email addresses have not been registered. Accordingly, 
members are requested to support this initiative by registering their email addresses in respect of shares held in dematerialized 
form with their respective Depository Participants and in respect of shares held in physical form with the Company’s Registrar and 
Transfer Agent, M/s. Venture Capital and Corporate Investments Private Limited 
 

17. Pursuant to Section 108 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as 
amended and Clause 35B of the Listing Agreement, the Company is pleased to provide facility to the members to exercise their 
right to vote at the 25TH AGM by electronic means and the business shall be transacted through Remote e-voting services provided 
by Central Depository Services  Limited (“CDSL”).  

 
18. The facility for voting through ballot / polling paper shall be made available at the AGM, to all the members attending the AGM, 

who have not opted evoting facility. Further, the members who have opted  Remote evoting facility may also attend the AGM but 
shall not be entitled to cast their vote again at the AGM.  

 
19. The Board of Directors of the company has appointed Mr. Manoj Kumar Koyalkar M/s AGR Reddy & Co., Practising Company 

Secretaries, Hyderabad as Scrutinizer for conducting the Remote e-voting process for the Annual General Meeting in a fair and 
transparent manner.  

 
20. The login ID and password for Remote e-voting is being sent to the members who have not registered their e-mail IDs with the 

Company / their respective Depository Participants along with physical copy of the Notice. Those members who have registered 
their e-mail IDs with the Company / their respective Depository Participants are being forwarded the login ID and password for 
Remote e-voting by e-mail.  

 
21. Voting rights shall be reckoned on the paid-up value of shares registered in the name of the member / beneficial owner (in case of 

electronic shareholding) as on the cut-off date i.e. 21st  September, 2015. A person, whose name is recorded in the register of 
members or in the register of beneficial owners maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date, only shall be entitled to avail 
the facility of Remote e-voting / Poll.  

 
22. Any person who become members of the Company after dispatch of the Notice of the Meeting and holding shares as on the cut-off 

date i.e. 21st  September,2015, may obtain the User ID and password for Remote e-voting by sending email intimating DP ID and 
Client ID / Folio No. at www.evotingindia.com or can vote through ballot paper to be downloaded from the Company’s website 
www.sphereglobal.in 

 
23. The Remote e-voting facility will be available during the following period:  

Commencement of Remote e-voting: From 9.00 a.m. (IST) on September 27, 2015  

End of Remote e-voting: Up to 5.00 p.m. (IST) on September, 29th, 2015  
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24. The Remote e-voting will not be allowed beyond the aforesaid date and time and the Remote e-voting module shall be 
 disabled by CDSL upon expiry of aforesaid period.  

 
25. The Scrutinizer, after scrutinising the votes cast at the meeting (Poll) and through Remote e-voting, will, not later than three days of 

conclusion of the Meeting, make a consolidated scrutinizer’s report and submit the same to the Chairman. The results  
 
declared along with the consolidated scrutinizer’s report shall be placed on the website of the Company www.sphereglobal.in 
and on the website of CDSL at www.evotingindia,com. The results shall simultaneously be communicated to the Stock 
Exchanges.  

 
26. Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the Resolutions shall be deemed to be passed on the date of the Meeting, i.e. 

September, 30th 2015.  
 
27. Instructions and other information relating to Remote e-voting: 

 
(i) The voting period begins on 27th September, 2015 at 09:00 a.m and ends on 29th day of September, 2015  at 5:00 p.m 

.During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the 
cut-off date 21.09.2015, may cast their vote electronically. The Remote e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting 
thereafter. 

(ii) The shareholders should log on to the Remote e-voting website www.evotingindia.com. 
(iii) Click on Shareholders. 
(iv) Now Enter your User ID  

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,  
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,  
c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company. 

(v) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 
(vi) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier voting of any 

company, then your existing password is to be used.  
(vii) If you are a first time user follow the steps given below: 

 For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form 

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department 
(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 

  Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository 
Participant are requested to use the first two letters of their name and the 8 digits 
of the sequence number in the PAN field. 

  In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable number of 0’s 
before the number after the first two characters of the name in CAPITAL letters. Eg. 
If your name is Ramesh Kumar with sequence number 1 then enter RA00000001 in 
the PAN field. 

DOB Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your demat account or in the company 
records for the said demat account or folio in dd/mm/yyyy format. 

Dividend 
Bank 
Details 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded in your demat account or in the 
company records for the said demat account or folio. 

  Please enter the DOB or Dividend Bank Details in order to login. If the details are not 
recorded with the depository or company please enter the member id / folio 
number in the Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in instruction (iv). 

 
(viii) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 

(ix) Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However, members holding 
shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login 



10

 

 

25th  ANNUAL REPORT 2014-15 

password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for 
resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for Remote e-voting 
through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care 
to keep your password confidential. 

 
 
 

(x) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for Remote e-voting on the resolutions contained 
in this Notice. 

 
(xi) Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose to vote. 

 
(xii) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select 

the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you 
dissent to the Resolution. 

 
(xiii) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details. 

 
(xiv) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you 

wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote. 
 

(xv) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 
 

(xvi) You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page. 
 

(xvii) If Demat account holder has forgotten the same password then Enter the User ID and the image verification code and click 
on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system. 

 
(xviii) Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians 

 
  Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are required to log on to  

www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporates. 
  A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to  

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 
  After receiving the login details a compliance user should be created using the admin login and password. The Compliance user 

would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on. 
  The list of accounts should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the accounts they would be able 

to cast their vote.  
  A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, 

should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 
 

(xix) In case you have any queries or issues regarding Remote e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) 
and Remote e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under help section or write an email to  

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

 
1. The log in ID and password for Remote e-voting along with process, manner and instructions for Remote e-voting is being sent 

to the members who have not registered their email IDS with the Company along with physical copy of notice. Those members 
who have registered their email IDS with the Company their respective Depository Participants are being forwarded the login 
ID and password for Remote e-voting along with process, manner and instructions by email. 

2. The Company has appointed Mr. Manoj Kumar Koyalkar, Company Secretary in Practice as “Scrutinizer” for conducting the 
Remote e-voting process for the Extra-ordinary General Meeting in a fair and transparent manner. 

 

 



11

 

 

25th  ANNUAL REPORT 2014-15 

 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 (1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
 
The following Explanatory Statements, as required under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, set out all material facts relating to 
the business under Item Nos. 4, 5, 6, 7 ,8,9,10,11,12,13 of the accompanying Notice dated 05.08.2015 
 
ITEM NO. 4 
Mrs. Suneeta  Vishnupanthulu, was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from 24.03.2015 in accordance with 
the provisions of sections 149, 152, 160 and 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of the Company. Pursuant to 
Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 the above director holds office up to the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In this 
regard the Company has received request in writing from a member of the company proposing Mrs. Suneeta  Vishnupanthulu 
candidature for appointment as Director of the Company in accordance with the provisions of Section 160 and all other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The Board feels that presence of Mrs. Suneeta  Vishnupanthulu on the Board is desirable and 
would be beneficial to the company and hence recommends resolution No. 4 for adoption. 
 
None of the Directors or KMP or relatives of Directors and KMP, except Mrs. Suneeta Vishnupanthulu, are in any way, concerned with or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution at Item No. 4 of the accompanying notice. 
 
The Board recommends the resolution at Item No. 4 to be passed as an ordinary resolution. 
 
ITEM NO. 5 
Mr. S Sudhakiran Reddy, was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from May 30, 2015 by the Board of 
Directors under Section 161, 149 (1) of the Act. 
 
In terms of Section 161(1) of the Act, Mr. S Sudhakiran Reddy   holds office only upto the date of the forthcoming AGM but is eligible for 
appointment as a Director. A notice under Section 160(1) of the Act has been received from a member signifying his intention to 
propose Mr. S Sudhakiran Reddy   as a Director.  
 
The Directors are of the view that the appointment of Mr. S Sudhakiran Reddy , as Director will be beneficial to the operations of the 
Company and hence said resolution being placed before the members for their approval.   
 
Except Mr. S Sudhakiran Reddy, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective relatives are 
concerned or interested in this resolution.  
 
ITEM NO. 6 
Members may note that Mr. S Sudhakiran Reddy, was appointed as an Managing Director of the Company with effect from 14th 
October,2014 
 
In compliance with provisions of Section 196, 197,198 and 203 of Companies Act, 2013, the appointment and remuneration of 
Managing director to be approved by the members of the company . 
 
A brief profile of the appointee is given below: 
 
A distinguished Chartered Accountant representing a coalition of specialized skills in corporate finance advisory, tax consultancy with 
demonstrated skills in implementation of ERP Software (SAP) in countries across two continents. A strong believer in adding value and 
optimizing the benefits accruing to stakeholders. Expert in managing risk and creating value for money by leveraging talent and 
technology. Possessing a broad vision and experience of over 20 years, he has been actively involved with many products and services 
companies, to help them develop and grow. 
 
Terms and conditions of appointment of appointee: 
 
A. The appointment of Managing Director is for a period of 3 years w.e.f. 14.10.2014 
 
B.  Nature of Duties: MD shall devote his whole time and attention to the business of the Company and perform such duties  as 
 may be entrusted to him by the Board from time to time and separately communicated to him and exercise such  
 powers as may  
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 be assigned to him, subject to the superintendence, control and directions of the Board in connection with and in the best 
 interests of the Company and the business of one or more of its associated companies and / or subsidiaries, including  
 performing duties as assigned to the  MD from time to time by serving on the Boards of such associated companies and  / or  
 subsidiaries or any other executive body or any committee of such company 
 
C. Remuneration: Basic salary of Rs. 24 lacs per annum. 
 
D:  Benefits, Perquisites and Allowances, Commission : NIL 
 
E:  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein contained, where in any financial year during the tenure of the CEO &  MD, 
 the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company will pay remuneration by way of Salary,  Benefits, 
 Perquisites and Allowances and Commission subject to further approvals as required under Schedule V of the  Companies  
 Act, 2013, or any modification(s) thereto. 
 
F: Other terms of Appointment include clauses pertaining to adherence with the Sphere Global Code of Conduct, non-
 solicitation and maintenance of confidentiality. 
 
Except Mr. S Sudhakiran Reddy, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective relatives are 
concerned or interested in this resolution.  
 
Your directors recommend the above resolution to be passed as special resolution. 
 
ITEM NO. 7 
Members may note that Mr.Ramkrishna Bhaskar was appointed as director of the company w.e.f 26.07.2014 and in the view of increase 
in roles and responsibilities of Mr.Ramkrishna Bhaskar ,the remuneration to be paid be and is hereby increased. 
 
A.  brief profile of the appointee is given below: 
 An astute & result oriented Executive with around 20 yrs of extensive experience in business operations. Handled diversified 
 manufacturing Domains in areas of Operations and Sales. Expertise in devising marketing activities to ameliorate the business 
 growth and create integrated strategies to develop and grow. A proactive executive with a passion to deliver, is exceptionally 
 quick to identify, focus and execute priorities that are pivotal for the enterprise. With an eye for detail & meticulous planning, 
 drives overall performance through comprehensive process and structure simplification. Excellent skills in communication & 
 presentation with proven abilities in leading motivated teams towards achieving organizational goals. 
 
B. Remuneration: Basic salary of Rs. 24 lacs per annum. 
 
C: Benefits, Perquisites and Allowances, Commission : NIL 
 
D: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein contained, where in any financial year during the tenure of the WTD, the 
 Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company will pay remuneration by way of Salary, Benefits, 
 Perquisites and Allowances and Commission subject to further approvals as required under Schedule V of the Companies Act, 
 2013, or any modification(s) thereto. 
 
E: Other terms of Appointment include clauses pertaining to adherence with the Sphere Global Code of Conduct, non-solicitation 
 and maintenance of confidentiality. 
 
Except Mr.Ramkrishna Bhaskar, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective relatives are 
concerned or interested in this resolution.  
 
Your directors recommend the above resolution to be passed as special resolution. 
 
ITEM NO.8 

Members may note that Mr.Prakash Tripathi was appointed as director of the company w.e.f 14.08.2014 and in the view of increase in 

roles and responsibilities of Mr.Prakash Tripathi, the remuneration to be paid be and is hereby increased. 
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A. Brief profile of the appointee is given below: 
 

 Is continuously creating great Sales and Service in IT and telecom corporations, by continuously achieving excellence through 
 individual insights that connect with end consumer. His mission is to inspire, innovate and integrate a creative consciousness, 
 through the use of available technology and evolved business decisions Builds a visible, vibrant and a reliable brand. Well 
 known figure in Indian IT Industry for starting and building green field operations and start-ups. Nurtures a culture of positive 
 discussion and empathy. Possess 2 decade of transnational experience in telecom, SAP , Oracle , IM and Cloud offerings, sales 
 and delivery operations. 
 
B. Remuneration: Basic salary of Rs. 24 lacs per annum. 
 
C:  Benefits, Perquisites and Allowances, Commission : NIL 
 
D: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein contained, where in any financial year during the tenure of the WTD, the 
 Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company will pay remuneration by way of Salary, Benefits, 
 Perquisites and Allowances and Commission subject to further approvals as required under Schedule V of the Companies Act, 
 2013, or any modification(s) thereto. 
 
E: Other terms of Appointment include clauses pertaining to adherence with the Sphere Global Code of Conduct, non-solicitation 
 and maintenance of confidentiality. 
 
Except Mr.Prakash Tripathi, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective relatives are 
concerned or interested in this resolution.  
 
Your directors recommend the above resolution to be passed as special resolution. 
 
ITEM NO 9: 
It is proposed to invest a sum not exceeding ` Rs.100 Crores which would be about 75% of the issue of the equity shares as visualised at 
present. The foreign collaborator will subscribe not exceeding 25% of the initial equity issue. 
Since, the proposed investment will be in excess of the prescribed limits, approval of the shareholders is required to the said 
investment. 
Your directors commend the resolution for acceptance by the members. None of the directors is interested in this resolution. 
 
ITEM NO:10 ESOPS 
The human resource plays a vital role in the growth and success of an organization. The Board has identified the need to reward the 
employees and to enable them to participate in the future growth and financial success of the Company, has proposed to offer the 
employees an option to acquire the equity shares of the Company under Employees Stock Option Scheme (ESOP’S) formulated in 
accordance with Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 (``the Regulations”). The 
Board has reserved an appropriate number of equity shares under the ESOP’S to be allotted against the stock options to be granted to 
the employees of the Company. The Board has duly approved the ESOP’S Scheme at its meeting held on  05.08.2015. 

The Company has constituted a Nomination and Remuneration /Compensation Committee to administer the Stock Option Scheme of 
the Company. 

The salient features of the ``SGSL ESOP’S -2015” are as under 

1. Brief Description of the Scheme(s): 
This proposed Scheme called the ``SGSL Employees Stock Option Scheme-2015 ``SGSL ESOP’S -2015”is intended to reward the Eligible 
Employees of the Company and its Subsidiary Companies in India and abroad, for their performance and to motivate them to contribute 
to the growth and profitability of the Company.  

The Company in terms of the said Regulations contemplates to enable the implementation of  SGSL ESOP- 2015 by dealing in/acquiring 
Equity Shares directly from the Company (“Primary Shares”). 
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2. Total number of Options to be granted: 
Such number of Options would be available for grant to the eligible employees of the Company and eligible employees of the Subsidiary 
Company(ies) under SGSL ESOP 2015, not exceeding more than 10 Lakh (Ten lakhs only) Equity Shares in the Company of face value of 
Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up. 
Vested Options lapsed due to non-exercise and/or unvested Options that get cancelled due to resignation/ termination of the 
employees or otherwise, would be available for being re-granted at a future date. 
 The Board is authorized to re-grant such lapsed / cancelled Options as per the provisions of SGSL ESOP 2015-16, within overall ceiling. 
The SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefit) Regulations require that in case of any corporate action(s) such as rights issues, bonus issues, 
merger and sale of division, and others, a fair and reasonable adjustment needs to be made to the Options granted. Accordingly, if any 
additional Equity Shares are required to be issued pursuant to any corporate action, the above ceiling of Equity Shares shall be deemed 
to increase in proportion of such additional Equity Shares issued subject to compliance of the SEBI  (Share Based Employee Benefit)  
Regulations. 

3. Identification of classes of employees entitled to participate in  SGSL ESOP 2015 
Following classes of employees are entitled to participate  

- Permanent employees of the Company working in India or out of India; 
- Directors of the Company; and 
- Permanent employees and Directors of the Subsidiary Company(ies). 

Following persons are not eligible: 
- an Independent Director within the meaning of the Companies Act, 2013. 
- an employee who is a Promoter or belongs to the Promoter Group; 

- a Director who either by himself or through his relatives or through any Body corporate, directly or indirectly holds more than 
10% of the outstanding Equity Shares of the Company; and 

4. Requirements of vesting and period of vesting: 
The Options granted shall vest so long as an employee continues to be in the employment of the Company or the Subsidiary Company 
as the case may be. The Compensation Committee may, at its discretion, lay down certain performance metrics on the achievement of 
which such Options would vest, the detailed terms and conditions relating to such performance-based vesting, and the proportion in 
which Options granted would vest subject to the minimum vesting period of 1 (one) year. 

5. Maximum period within which the Options shall be vested: 
Options granted under SGSL ESOP-2015-would vest subject to maximum period of 5 (five) years from the date of grant of such Options. 

6. Exercise price or pricing formula: 
(i) Exercise Price. 

 Exercise price per Options shall be equal to the Market price on the date of grant of Options or upto 25% of the discount to the Market 
Price on the date of grant, as decided by the Compensation Committee. 

(ii)  Market price 
Market price under the SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefit) Regulations means the latest available closing price on the stock exchange 
on which the equity shares of the company are listed on the date immediately prior to the Relevant Date. If such shares are listed on 
more than one stock exchange, then the closing price on the stock exchange having higher trade volume shall be considered as the 
market price.  

(iii) Relevant Date 
 under the SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefit)  Regulations means: 

- In the case of grant, the date of the meeting of the  Compensation Committee on which the Grant is made; or  
- In the case of exercise, the date on which the notice of exercise is given to the Company by the employee. 
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7. Exercise period and the process of Exercise:  
The Vested Options shall be allowed for exercise on and from the date of vesting. The vested Options need to be exercised within a 
maximum period of 1year from the date of vesting of such Options. 

The Vested Options shall be exercisable by the employees by a written application to the Company expressing his/ her desire to exercise 
such Options in such manner and on such format as may be prescribed by the Compensation Committee from time to time. The Options 
shall lapse if not exercised within the specified exercise period. 

8. Appraisal process for determining the eligibility of employees under SGSL ESOP -2015: 
The appraisal process for determining the eligibility of the employees will be decided by Compensation Committee from time to time. 

The employees would be granted Options under the SGSL ESOP- 2015 based on various parameters such as performance rating, period 
of service, rank or designation and such other parameters as may be decided by the Compensation Committee from time to time. 

9. Maximum number of Options to be issued per employee and in aggregate:  
The number of Options that may be granted to any specific employee of the Company or of its Subsidiary Company under the Plan , in 
any financial year and in aggregate under the SGSL ESOP -2015 shall be less than 1% of the issued Equity Share Capital (excluding 
outstanding warrants and conversions) of the Company.” 

10. Maximum Quantum of benefits to be provided per employee under the SGSL ESOP -2015 
The Maximum quantum of benefits underlying the Options issued to an eligible employee shall depend upon the Market Price of the 
shares as on the date of sale of shares arising out of Exercise of Options. 

11. Source of Shares 
The Scheme contemplates new Issue of Shares by the Company (“Primary Shares”). 

12. The amount of loan provided for implementation of the Scheme by the Company to the Trust, its tenure, utilisation, 
repayment terms etc. 

    Company is implementing SGSL ESOP- 2015 directly and no loan is provided for the purpose of ESOP. 

13. Maximum percentage of Secondary Acquisition (subject to limits specified under the Regulations) that can be made by the 
Trust for the purchase of the scheme 

The Company is implementing ESOP by dealing in/acquiring Equity Shares directly from the Company (“Primary Shares”). 

14. Accounting and Disclosure Policies:  
The Company shall follow the ‘Guidance Note on Accounting for Employee Share-based Payments’ and/or any relevant Accounting 
Standards as may be prescribed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India from time to time, including the disclosure 
requirements prescribed therein. 

15. Method of Option Valuation: 
To calculate the employee compensation cost, the Company shall use the Intrinsic Value method for valuation of the Options granted. 
The difference between the employee compensation cost so computed and the employee compensation cost that shall have been 
recognized if it had used the fair value of the Options and the impact of this difference on profits and on Earnings per Share (EPS) of the 
company shall also be disclosed in the Boards’ report. 

16. The Nomination and Remuneration/Compensation Committee shall be vest with all the powers as per the SEBI 
Regulations applicable to the ESOP’S. 
 

Consent of the members is being sought pursuant to Section 62(1)(b) and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 
2013and rules framed there under and as per Regulation 6 of the SEBI Share Based Employee Benefit  Regulations. 

The Company shall comply with all necessary disclosures as may be prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (including rules thereof), 
SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014, and any other law as may be applicable and amended from time to time. 
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The options to be granted / shares to be issued under the Scheme shall not be treated as an offer or invitation made to public for subscription in 
the securities of the Company. 

The Directors recommend the Resolution in the best interest of the Company for your approval. 

None of the Directors of the Company is, in any way, concerned or interested in the resolutions, except to the extent of their shareholding in the 
Company and to the extent of the options / shares that may be offered to them under the Scheme. 

ITEM NO.11 
Members may note that at the time of granting in-principal approval, the Bombay stock exchange required the resolution passed at the EGM held on 
15.06.2015 to be ratified at the next general meeting since the price method to be based on volume weighted average market price instead of Volume 
weighted average price. .The correct pricing has been arrived and a certificate for the same has been obtained.The same is available at the registered 
office of the company. Hence the director(s) commend this resolution to be ratified at this annual general meeting 
None of the Directors of the Company is, in any way, concerned or interested in the resolutions, except to the extent of their shareholding in the 
Company and to the extent of the options / shares that may be offered to them under the Scheme. 

ITEM NO:12 
Members may note that the financial assistance from financial institutions and/or Banks or such other lenders has to be secured by way of 
charge on all the movable and immovable properties of the Company, present and future. It is necessary for the members to pass a special 
resolution under section 180(1)(a) and 180(1)(c)  of the Companies  Act, 2013 to enable the  Board of Directors to exercise the borrowing 
powers which, in aggregate, may exceed the  paid-up capital and free reserves of the Company and to create charge on moveable /  
immoveable properties of the Company in favor of the lenders. 
 
The Directors commend the resolution(s) set out at item No. 12 for your approval as Special Resolution . 
None of the directors, manager, Key Managerial personnel, and their relatives of the Company is interested or concerned in the said resolution 
except to the extent of their respective shareholding in the company. 
 
ITEM NO:13 
The Articles of Association (“AoA”) of the Company as presently in force are based on the Companies Act, 1956 and several regulations in the 
existing AoA contain references to specific sections of the Companies Act, 1956 and some regulations in the existing AoA are no longer in 
conformity with the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"). Substantive sections of the Act which deals with the general working of companies stand 
notified. With the coming into force of the Act several regulations of the existing AoA of the Company require alteration or deletions in several 
articles. Given this position, it is considered expedient to wholly replace the existing AoA by a new set of Articles. 
The new AoA to be substituted in place of the existing AoA are based on Table ‘F’ of the Act which sets out the model articles of association for 
a company limited by shares. A copy of the proposed set of new AoA of the Company would be available for inspection at the Registered Office 
of the Company during the business hours on any working day, up to the date of the Annual General Meeting and during the Annual General 
Meeting. None of the directors or KMP or relatives of Directors and KMP are in any way concerned with or interested financially or otherwise in 
the resolution at item no. 15 of the accompanying notice. The Board recommends the Resolution at Item No. 13 to be passed as special 
resolution. 

 
 

Registered Office : 
 Plot No. A-52, Journalist Colony,                                             By Order of the Board 
Jubilee Hills -500033,                                  for SPHERE GLOBAL SERVICES LIMITED 
SPHERE GLOBAL SERVICE LIMITED                                                                                           (formerly known as Color Chips (India) Limited) 
Hyderabad, Telangana,       
Tel:  +91-40-2355 2284/85/86 
Fax: +91-40-2355 2283 
CIN: L36999TG1990PLC011129                               sd/- 
Website: www.sphereglobal.in 
 Email: cs@sphereglobal.in                            Akshita Surana  

            Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
                                                                          Membership Number: A3257 

Date: 05.08.2015 
Place: Hyderabad 
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Details of the Directors proposed to be appointed / re appointed at the AGM Scheduled to be held on September 30, 2015, 
(Pursuant to Clause 49 (VIII)(E) of the Listing Agreement) is given below:  
 
Name of the Director Mrs.Suneeta 

Vishnupanthulu 
Mr. S Sudhakiran Reddy Mr.Ramakrishna Bhaskar 

Qualification M.com from Osmania 
University 

Chartered Accountant M.com from Osmania 
University and Diploma in 
Management from Laussane  

Expertise in specific 
functional areas 

An entrepreneur with 
about 2 decade of 
experience into Business 
Process Outsourcing. 
Posses rich banking and 
financial knowledge. A 
lady with vision with 
strong focus on innovation 
and Process Outsourcing. 

A distinguished Chartered 
Accountant representing a 
coalition of specialized skills in 
corporate finance advisory, 
tax consultancy with 
demonstrated skills in 
implementation of ERP 
Software (SAP) in countries 
across two continents. A 
strong believer in adding 
value and optimizing the 
benefits accruing to 
stakeholders. Expert in 
managing risk and creating 
value for money by leveraging 
talent and technology. 
Possessing a broad vision and 
experience of over 20 years, 
he has been actively involved 
with many products and 
services companies, to help 
them develop and grow. 

An astute & result oriented 
Executive with around 20 yrs of 
extensive experience in 
business operations. Handled 
diversified manufacturing 
Domains in areas of Operations 
and Sales. Expertise in devising 
marketing activities to 
ameliorate the business growth 
and create integrated strategies 
to develop and grow. A 
proactive executive with a 
passion to deliver, is 
exceptionally quick to identify, 
focus and execute priorities 
that are pivotal for the 
enterprise. With an eye for 
detail & meticulous planning, 
drives overall performance 
through comprehensive 
process and structure 
simplification. Excellent skills in 
communication & presentation 
with proven abilities in leading 
motivated teams towards 
achieving organizational goals. 

Date of appointment on 
the Board of the Company 

24.03.2015 03.10.2014 18.05.2015 

Details of shares held in 
company as on 31.03.2015 

NIL 2473 Equity Shares Nil 

List of other companies in 
which directorships are 
held as on 31.03.2015 

   

Chairman /member of the 
committees of other 
companies in which 
he/she is a Director as on 
31.03.2015 

Nil Nil Nil 

Category Independent Director Managing Director WTD & CFO 
Relationship with other 
Directors 

Nil Nil Nil 

 
There are no inter-se relationships between the Board Members. 
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

To, 
The Members, 

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 25th Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company and the accounts 
for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2015. 

1.   Financial summary or highlights/Performance of the Company 

The Board’s Report shall be prepared based on the stand alone financial statements of the company. 

Particulars Consolidated 
 

Standalone 

2014-15 2013-14 
(9 months) 

2014-15 2013-14 
(9 months) 

Total Income  192,404,702  4,45,000  96,619,410  445,000 
 
Profit Before Interest, Depreciation & Tax  18,398,654  

 
-473,956  7,161,110  -473,956 

Profit Before Tax 5,677,821 -145,521 -3,556,680  -1,458,521  
Profit After Tax  1,326,919  -1,458,521  -5,626,886  -1,458,521   
Dividend percentage (%) Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 
Brief description of the Company’s working during the year/State of Company’s affair 
The company has suffered a loss of -3,556,680/- During the year 2014-15 which was -1,458,521/- during the last financial year 2013-14.  

Companies which have become or ceased to be its Subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies during the year: 
Adroit InfoTech Private Limited became subsidiary of the company on 07.11.2014 
 
Consolidated Financial Results 
Consolidated Financial Statements incorporating the operations of the Company, its subsidiaries is appended. As required under the provisions 
of the Act, a statement showing the salient features of the financial statements of the subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures is forming part 
of this Annual Report. 
The financial statements of the subsidiary companies will be made available to the members of the Company and its subsidiary companies on 
request and will also be kept for inspection in the Registered Office of the Company. 

Material Changes and Commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the company 
The Company has made acquisition of a Pune based IT Company namely ADROIT InfoTech Private Limited. There are no other Material Changes 
and Commitments affecting the financial position of the Company which occurred between the end of the financial year to which the financial 
statements relate and the date of this Report. Further the company has now entered into IT and ITES business. 

 
Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS) 
In accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and Accounting Standard (AS) - 21 on Consolidated Financial Statements read with AS - 
23 on Accounting for Investments in Associates and AS - 27 on Financial Reporting of Interests in Joint Ventures, the audited consolidated 
financial statement is provided in the Annual Report. 
The CFS should therefore be read in conjunction with the directors’ reports, financial notes, cash flow statements and the individual auditor 
reports of the subsidiaries. 
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Share Capital 
The Authorised Share Capital of the company is Rs. 39,31,50,000/- divided into 39315000 equity shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten) each. 
The Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Capital of the Company is Rs. 174,688,720./- divided into 1,74,68,872 equity shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten) 
each. 

The Company has made preferential issue of 10,00,000 warrants pursuant to the special resolution passed at the Extraordinary general meeting 
held on 15.06.2015. Company has received in-principle approval from the Bombay stock exchange in respect of 10,00,000 warrants. However, 
the Bombay stock exchange required calculation of minimum price of warrants as per ICDR Regulations and the same to be disclosed at the 
general meeting of the company. Members to take note of same. 
 
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 
Board of directors is duly constituted. 
Mr. Ramakrishna Bhaskar Director retires by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offer himself for 
reappointment.   

Ms. Suneeta  Vishnupanthulu  was appointed as additional director w.e.f 24.03.2015  

Mr. S. Sudha Kiran Reddy to be appointed as Managing director of the company for a period of 3 years w.e.f. 30.09.2015. 

 
Key Mangerial Personnel: 

(i) Mr. S. Sudha Kiran Reddy   was appointed as Managing director w.e.f 03.10.2014 
 

(ii) Dr.GSR Somayaji resigned as Company Secretary w.e.f 30.06.2015 and  Ms. Akshita Surana was appointed as Company 
Secretary w.e.f.01.07.2015 
 

(iii) Mr. Rama Krishna Bhaskar , director of the company was appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the company w.e.f 
18.06.2015 

All independent directors have given declaration that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down under section 149(6) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and clause 49 of listing agreement. 

Directors’ Responsibility Statement 
Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, Directors of your Company hereby state and confirm that: 
 

i. in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March 2015, the applicable accounting standards had 
been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures. 

 
ii. That the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that 

were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year 
and of the profit or loss of the company for the year under review. 

 
iii. That the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities; 

 
iv. That the Directors have prepared the accounts for the financial year ended 31st March 2015 on a ‘going concern’ basis. 

 
v. That the Directors laid down internal financial controls for the Company and such internal financial controls are adequate and 

operating effectively; and 
 

   Vi.        That the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and  such 
 systems are adequate and operating effectively. 

Board Evaluation 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the Board has carried out an annual 
performance evaluation of its own performance, the directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its Audit, Nomination & 
Remuneration and Compliance Committees. The manner in which the evaluation has been carried out has been explained in the Corporate 
Governance Report. 
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Meetings Of The Board 
The Board of Directors duly met 10times on 30.05.2014, 26.07.2014, 07.08.2014, 14.08.2014, 24.09.2015 , 30.09.2014, 14.10.2014, 07.11.2014 , 
09.02.2015, 24.03.2015 in respect of which meetings, proper notices were given and the proceedings were properly recorded and signed in the 
Minutes Book maintained for the purpose. 
 
Constitution and Composition of Audit Committee 
In Compliance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, Audit Committee has been constituted. 
The Composition of the Audit committee is as follows: 
 
Sunder Raj                   - Non Executive Independent Director   -Chairman 
 
S Sudha Kiran Reddy   - Managing Director                               - Member 

SRS Srivastav              - Non-Executive Independent Director   - Member 

Particulars of Employees  
Details in respect of remuneration paid to employees as required under Section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 , read with Rule 5(2) & (3) 
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, as amended forms part of this report. In terms of 
Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 the same is open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company. 
Copies of this statement may be obtained by the members by writing to the Company Secretary at the Registered Office of the Company 
The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median employee’s remuneration and other details in terms of Section 197(12) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, are 
enclosed in Annexure A and forms part of this Report 

Remuneration Policy 
The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee framed a policy for selection and appointment of 
Directors, Senior Management and their remuneration. The Remuneration Policy is stated in the Corporate Governance Report. 

Risk management policy 
A statement indicating development and implementation of a risk management policy for the Company including identification therein of 
elements of risk, if any, this in the opinion of the Board may threaten the existence of the company. 

Statutory Auditors:  
M/s. Niranjan and Narayan, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 005899S ) to be  appointed for a period of 3 years subject to 
ratification by members at every consequent Annual General Meeting.  
Therefore, ratification of appointment of Statutory Auditors for financial year 2015-2016 is being sought from the members of the Company at 
the ensuing AGM . 
Secretarial Audit Report  
In terms of Section 204 of the Act and Rules made there under, Mr. Manoj Kumar Koyalkar M/s. AGR Reddy & Co, Practicing Company Secretary 
has been appointed Secretarial Auditors of the Company. The report of the Secretarial Auditors is enclosed as Annexure B to this report.  
Reply to Secretarial Audit Report  
The Secretarial Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualification. The report is self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments. 
Internal Audit & Controls 
The Company has adequate system of internal control to safeguard and protect from loss, unauthorized use or disposition of its assets. 
All the transactions are properly authorized, recorded and reported to the Management. The Company is following all the applicable 
Accounting Standards for properly maintaining the books of accounts and reporting financial statements. The internal auditor of the company 
checks and verifies the internal control and monitors them in accordance with policy adopted by the company. The Company continues to 
ensure proper and adequate systems and procedures commensurate with its size and nature of its business. 

Extract of Annual Return: 
As required pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2014, an extract of annual return in MGT 9 as a part of this Annual Report  as Annexure C 

Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under section 186 
Details of loans, guarantees or investments are provided in notes to accounts of Auditor’s Report. 
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Corporate Governance   

The Company is committed to maintain the high standards of corporate governance and adhere to the corporate governance requirements set 
out by SEBI. As per Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges, a separate section on corporate governance practices followed  
by the Company, together with a certificate from the Company’s Auditor confirming compliance forms an integral part of this Annual Report in 
Annexure E. 
 
Management Discussion and Analysis 
Management Discussion and Analysis Report, pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, forms part of this report and the same is forming 
part of this report.  

 
Conservation of Energy &Technology absorption 
Information on conservation of Energy, Technology absorption, Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo required to be disclosed under Section 
134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are as follows: 
 
We firmly believe that technology is the genesis of innovative business practices, which in turn enable the organization to carry out business 
effectively and efficiently. Even though the Information Technology industry is technology intensive, we believe that there is an increasing need 
to mechanize the processes involved in order to minimize costs and increase efficiency. We intend to make investments in innovative 
techniques for this regard. Energy: The Company is in the business of development of Information Technology and does not require large 
quantities of energy. However, wherever possible energy saving efforts are made. 
Listing With Stock Exchanges:  

1. The Company is listed on BSE and NSE (NSE Revocation is under process) 
2. The Company confirms that it has paid the Annual Listing Fees for the year 2015-2016 to BSE and NSE where the Company’s Shares 

are listed. 
General 

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there were no transactions on these items 
during the year under review: 

1. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise. 
2. Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any scheme. 
3. No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the going concern status and 

Company’s operations in future. 
4. During the year under review, there were no cases filed pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 

Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 
5. There were no material changes commitments affecting the financial position of the Company between  the end of financial year 

(March 31, 2015) and the date of the report (August 05, 2015), save and except  provided in the report. 
6. During the year under review, your Company did not accept any public deposits. 
7. During the year under review, your company has not declared any dividend neither has transferred any amount to reserves. 
8. Non-applicability of Corporate Social Responsibility under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
9. There were no Related Party Transactions entered during the financial year under review Annexure-D 
10. There were no qualifications mentioned by the Auditors in their report. 
11. The policies, as framed by the company is available on the web link as provided hereunder:   

http://www.sphereglobal.in/policies-our-company.html 
12. There were no Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year and the Foreign Exchange outgo during the year in 

terms of actual outflows. 
Acknowledgements 
Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation of the contribution made by the employees at all levels, to the continued growth and 
prosperity of your Company. 
Your Directors also wish to place on record their appreciation of business constituents, banks and other financial institutions and shareholders, 
of the Company for their continued support. 
  
            By Order of the Board 
          For SPHERE GLOBAL SERVICES LIMITED 
         (Formerly known as Color Chips (India) Limited) 
 
         S. Sudhakiran Reddy        Ramakrishna Bhaskar 
Date : 05.08.2015       Managing Director            Director & CFO 
Place : Hyderabad       DIN: 01436242                   DIN: 01620392 
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Statement of particulars as per Rule 5 of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial personnel)

Rules, 2014.

Annexure  A

Name of the DirectorSi.No.
Ratio of the remuneration to the median 

remuneration of the employees

1. Mr. S Sudhakiran Reddy 1:30000

2. Mr. Nyayapathi Sunder Raj 1:30000

3. Mr. Sai Ramakrishna Srivastav Sadasivuni 1:30000

4. Mr. Prakash Tripathi 1:30000

5. Mr. Rama Krishna Bhaskar 1:30000

6. Mrs. Suneeta Vishnupanthulu 1:30000

(I) The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the company

for the financial year:

(ii) The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company

Secretary or Manager in the financial year

Name of the KMPSi.No. Percentage increase in remuneration

1. Mr. S. Sudhakiran Reddy NIL

2. Mr. Rama Krishna Bhaskar NIL

3. Mr. Somayaji NIL

(iii) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year NIL.

(iv) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company ; 9 employees

Average increase in remunerationSi.No. Company performance

1. NIL NA

(v) The explanation on the relationship between average increase in remuneration and Company performance

Sphere Global Services Ltd
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Market quotations of the shares of the Company in comparison to the rate at which the Company came out with the last 

public offer:

The Company made an Initial Public Offer in the year 2000 at a price of ̀  10/- per equity share (at par). As on 31st March, 2015

the Market Quotation for the Company’s Equity Shares of 10/- each (Closing Price) is 35.45

 (vii) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the 

last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification 

thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration.

Average percentile increase in the salaries of the employees other than the managerial personnel in the last financial 

year is Nil and there has been no increase in the managerial remuneration during the last financial year.

(viii) Comparison of the remuneration of each of the Key Managerial Personnel against the performance of the Company

NameSi.No.
Remuneration of Key Managerial

Personnel (Incl.Commission) Rs.

1. Mr.S Sudhakiran Reddy, Managing Director 1/-  p.m NA

2. Mr.Somayaji, Company Secretary

(Resigned w.e.f  30.6.2015)

3. Mr.Rama Krishna Bhaskar

Whole time director 1/- p.m NA

Chief Financial Officer  (w.e.f : 18.06.2015)

Performance of the Company for

the year ended 31st March, 2015

(ix) The key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by the directors: NA

 (x) The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that of the employees who are not directors but receive 

remuneration in excess of the highest paid director during the year. -N.A.-

(xi) The Remuneration paid to Key Managerial Personnel is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company.

(vi) Variations in the market capitalization of the company, price earnings ratio as at the closing date of the current 

financial year and previous financial year and percentage increase over decrease in the market quotations of the shares 

of the company in comparison to the rate at which the company came out with the last public offer

ParticularSi.No. As at March 31, 2015

1. Market Capitalisation 620,144,956 101,668,835

2. Price Earning Ratio -110.94 -68.75

As at March 31, 2014

30000/-  p.m                              NA

Sphere Global Services Ltd
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Form AOC-1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)

ParticularsSi.No. Details

1. Name of the subsidiary Adroit InfoTech Private Limited

2. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned,

if different from the holding company’s reporting period INR

3. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date

of the relevant Financial year in the case of 

foreignsubsidiaries INR

4.       Share capital 10,00,000/-

5.       Reserves & surplus 1,67,23,307/-

6.       Total assets 5,37,80,927/-

7.       Total Liabilities 3,60,57,620/-

8.       Investments NIL

9.       Turnover 9,57,85,292/-

10.   Profit before taxation 35,66,030/-

11.   Provision for taxation 23,05,800/-

12.   Profit after taxation 12,85,334/-

13.   Proposed Dividend NIL

14.   % of shareholding 100%

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations

2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year.

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

Name of associates/Joint Ventures Not Applicable

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date - - -

2. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company on the year end No. - - -

Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture Extend of Holding%

3. Description of how there is significant influence - - -

4. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated - - -

5. Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet - - -

6. Profit/Loss for the year - - -

I.Considered in Consolidation - - -

ii. Not Considered in Consolidation - - -

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations.

2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year.

Note: This Form is to be certified in the same manner in which the Balance Sheet is to be certified.

Sphere Global Services Ltd
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

Annexure B

To

The Members,

SPHERE GLOBAL SERVICES LIMITED,

Plot No. A-52, Journalist Colony,

Jubilee Hills,

Hyderabad-500033, Telangana

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 

good corporate practices by SPHERE GLOBAL SERVICES LIMITED (hereinafter called the “Company”). Secretarial 

Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 

conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 

records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and 

authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the 

Company has during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2015, complied with the 

statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-

mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 

Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2015 according to the provisions of:

(1) The Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and the rules made there under and other applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 1956 which are still in force;

(2) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;

(3) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed under that Act;

(4) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 

1992 

(‘SEBI Act’)

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)

Regulations, 2011; 

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992; 

(5) Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952;

(6) I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(I) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange and National

Stock Exchange;

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 

Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

Sphere Global Services Ltd
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I further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-

Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that 

took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 

were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 

clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views, if any, are captured and recorded as 

part of the minutes.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 

operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 

guidelines.

For AGR Reddy & Co.

Company Secretaries

 

Manoj Kumar Koyalkar

Place : Hyderabad M. Number: 19445

Date  : 03rd August, 2015 C P Number: 10004

*This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as’ Annexure A’ and forms an integral part 

of this report. 

Sphere Global Services Ltd
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‘ANNEXURE A’

To

The Members,

SPHERE GLOBAL SERVICES LIMITED,

Plot No. A-52, Journalist Colony,

Jubilee Hills,

Hyderabad-500033, Telangana

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. My 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 

about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis 

to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes and 

practices, I fo l l o we d  p ro v i d e  a  

reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the 

company.

4. Where ever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws,  rules and 

regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 

responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or 

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For AGR Reddy & Co.

Company Secretaries

 

Manoj Kumar Koyalkar

Place : Hyderabad M. Number: 19445

Date  : 03rd August, 2015 C P Number: 10004

Sphere Global Services Ltd
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Annexure C

MGT-9 Extract of Annual Return

FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on financial year ended on March 31st, 2015

[Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management & 

Administration) Rules, 2014]

 REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

CIN

Registration Date

Name of the Company

Category/Sub-category of the Company

Address of the Registered office  &

contact details

Whether listed company

Name, Address & contact details of the

Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any.

Venture Capital and Corporate Investments Private Ltd

12-10-167, Bharat Nagar, Hyderabad-500018

Ph: 040-23818475/476 Fax: 040-23868024

Ph. No: 040 – 40144967

 L36999TG1990PLC011129

19.03.1990

SPHERE GLOBAL SERVICES LIMITED

(formerly known as Color Chips (India) Limited)

Category - Company Limited by Shares

Sub-Category - Indian Non-Government Company

Plot No. A-52, Journalist Colony,

Jubilee Hills -500033, Hyderabad, Telangana 

Phone No.: +91-40-2355 2284/85/86 

Fax No.: +91-40-2355 2283

E-mail Id: cs@sphereglobal.in

Website: www.sphereglobal.in /

Yes

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (All the business activities contributing 10 % or 

more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

Name and Description of main

products / services

S.No. NIC Code of the Product/service %  to total turnover of the company

1 Information Technology 620 100 

PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Name and Address

of the Company

S

No.
CIN/GLN Holding/ subsidiary/

Associate

% of

shares held

U72200PN2000PTC015633
Adroit infotech

private limited
Wholly owned Subsidary 100

Applicable

Section

21

Sphere Global Services Ltd
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SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

Category-wise Share Holding

ii) Shareholding of Promoters

Shareholder’s Name
Shareholding at the beginning

of the year

Shareholding at the end of the year

No. of

Shares

% of total

Shares of

the company

% of Shares

Pledged /

encumbered

to total shares

No. of

Shares

% of total

Shares of

the company

% of Shares

Pledged /

encumbered

to total shares

% change in

shareholding

during the year

1 CCAPL (SGIL)

2 RAVIKAANTH

PORTFOLIO SERVICES

PRIVATE LIMITED 1310055 7.50 NIL 1310055 7.50 NIL NIL

3 COLOR CHIPS NEW

MEDIA LTD 1264106 7.24 NIL 564106 3.23 NIL NIL

4 R SUDHISH NIL NIL NIL 700004 4.01 NIL NIL

5 SOFTPOINT

TECHNOLOGIES

PVT. LTDNIL NIL NIL NIL 700000 4.00 NIL NIL

Total 13053060 74.72 12553060 71.86

10478899 59.99 NILL 9278895 53.12 NIL NIL

iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Particulars Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the year

No. of Shares % of total Shares of 

the company

No. of Shares % of total Shares of

the company

1. At the beginning of the year 13053060 74.72% 13053060 74.72%

2. Date wise Increase / Decrease in 

Promoters Shareholding during the

year specifying the reasons for

increase / decrease (e.g. allotment /

transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.): 500000 0.028%

At the end of the year 12553060 71.87% 12553060 71.87%

SI.

No.

S

No.
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iv)  Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders: 

      (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the year

No. of Shares % of total Shares

of the company

No. of Shares % of total Shares of

the company

1. CYBERTOONS ENTERTAINMENT PVT.LTD

At the beginning of the year 01.04.2014           1158757 6.63% 1158757 6.63%

Date wise Increase / Decrease in                                             0   0       0    0

Promoters Shareholding during the

year specifying the reasons for

increase / decrease (e.g. allotment /

transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):

At the end of the year (or on the date                               1158757 6.63% 1158757 6.63%

of separation, if separated during

the year)

2. SITA SISTA

At the beginning of the year                                           0  0         0    0

Date wise Increase / Decrease in 06.02.2015             100000 0.57% 100000 0.57%

Promoters Shareholding during the TRANSFER

year specifying the reasons for

increase /decrease (e.g. allotment /

transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):

At the end of the year (or on the date                                 100000 0.57% 100000 0.57%

of separation, if separated during

the year)

3. M. VIJAY KUMAR

At the beginning of the year                                          0     0      0    0

Date wise Increase / Decrease in 15.08.2014            100000 0.57% 100000 0.57%

Promoters Shareholding during the TRANSFER

year specifying the reasons for

increase /decrease (e.g. allotment /

transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):

At the end of the year (or on the date                                100000 0.57% 100000 0.57%

of separation, if separated during the

year)

SI.

No.
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For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the year

No. of Shares % of total Shares

of the company

No. of Shares % of total Shares of

the company

4. JASBINDER KAUR CHADHA

At the beginning of the year                                        0 0 0 0

Date wise Increase / Decrease in 31.12.2014           100000 0.57% 100000 0.57%

Promoters Shareholding during the TRANSFER

year specifying the reasons for

increase /decrease (e.g. allotment /

transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):

At the end of the year (or on the date                              100000 0.57% 100000 0.57%

of separation, if separated during

the year)

5. MUKESH KUMAR. MEENA

At the beginning of the year                                          0  0     0    0

Date wise Increase / Decrease in 06.03.2015          100000 0.57% 100000 0.57%

Promoters Shareholding during the TRANSFER

year specifying the reasons for 

increase /decrease (e.g. allotment /

transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):

At the end of the year (or on the date                               100000 0.57% 100000 0.57%

of separation, if separated during

the year)

6. SREE LAKSHMI RAMABHOTLA

At the beginning of the year                                        0 0 0 0

Date wise Increase / Decrease in 30.09.2014           300000 0.01% 300000 0.01%

Promoters Shareholding during the TRANSFER

year specifying the reasons for

increase /decrease (e.g. allotment /

transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):

At the end of the year (or on the date                               300000 0.01% 300000 0.01%

of separation, if separated during

the year)

SI.

No.
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For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the year

No. of Shares % of total Shares

of the company

No. of Shares % of total Shares of

the company

7. MOHAMMED QAYYUM

At the beginning of the year                                         0 0 0 0

Date wise Increase / Decrease in 27.03.2015          297842 1.70% 297842 1.70%

Promoters Shareholding during the TRANSFER

year specifying the reasons for

increase /decrease (e.g. allotment /

transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):

At the end of the year (or on the date                                297842 1.70% 297842 1.70%

of separation, if separated during

the year)

8. VIJAY KUMAR MAISTRY

At the beginning of the year                                        0 0 0 0

Date wise Increase / Decrease in 15.08.2014           200000 1.14% 200000 1.14%

Promoters Shareholding during the TRANSFER

year specifying the reasons for

increase /decrease (e.g. allotment /

transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):

At the end of the year (or on the date                                200000 1.14% 200000 1.14%

of separation, if separated during

the year)

9. G SRINIVASULU

At the beginning of the year                              1197842 6.86% 1197842 6.86%

Date wise Increase / Decrease in 31.12.2014         (300000) 1.71% 897842 5.13%

Promoters Shareholding during the TRANSFER

year specifying the reasons for

increase /decrease (e.g. allotment / 16.01.2015         (100000) 0.57% 797842 4.56%

transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.): TRANSFER

06.02.2015         (100000) 0.57% 697842 4.00%

TRANSFER

27.03.2015        (297842) 1.70% 400000 2.28%

At the end of the year (or on the date                                400000 2.28% 400000 2.28%

of separation, if separated during

the year)

SI.

No.
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For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the year

No. of Shares % of total Shares

of the company

No. of Shares % of total Shares of

the company

10. RIDDHIMA KAUR CHADHA

At the beginning of the year                                          0 0.0%       0   0

Date wise Increase / Decrease in 31.12.2014          100000 0.57% 100000 0.57%

Promoters Shareholding during the TRANSFER

year specifying the reasons for

increase /decrease (e.g. allotment /

transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):

At the end of the year (or on the date                                100000 0.57% 100000 0.57%

of separation, if separated during

the year)

SI.

No.
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V) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Shareholding of each Directors 

and each Key Managerial Personnel
Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the year

No. of Shares % of total Shares of 

the company

No. of Shares % of total Shares of

the company

1. Mr. S Sudhakiran Reddy                

At the beginning of the year NIL NIL NIL NIL

Date wise Increase / Decrease in 

Promoters Shareholding during the

year specifying the reasons for

increase / decrease (e.g. allotment /

transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.): 05.09.2014 NIL NIL NIL

At the end of the year 2473 NIL NIL NIL

2. Mr. Nyayapathi Sunder Raj

At the beginning of the year NIL NIL NIL NIL

Date wise Increase / Decrease in 

Promoters Shareholding during the

year specifying the reasons for

increase / decrease (e.g. allotment /

transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.): NIL NIL NIL NIL

At the end of the year NIL NIL NIL NIL

3. Mr. Sai Ramakrishna Srivastav

Sadasivuni

At the beginning of the year NIL NIL NIL NIL

Date wise Increase / Decrease in 

Promoters Shareholding during the

year specifying the reasons for

increase / decrease (e.g. allotment /

transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.): NIL NIL NIL NIL

At the end of the year NIL NIL NIL NIL

4. Mr. Prakash Tripathi

At the beginning of the year NIL NIL NIL NIL

Date wise Increase / Decrease in 

Promoters Shareholding during the

year specifying the reasons for

increase / decrease (e.g. allotment /

transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.): NIL NIL NIL NIL

At the end of the year NIL NIL NIL NIL

SI.

No.
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V) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

5. Mr. Rama Krishna Bhaskar               

At the beginning of the year NIL NIL NIL NIL

Date wise Increase / Decrease in 

Promoters Shareholding during the

year specifying the reasons for

increase / decrease (e.g. allotment /

transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.): NIL NIL NIL NIL

At the end of the year NIL NIL NIL NIL

6. Ms. Suneeta Vishnupanthulu

At the beginning of the year NIL NIL NIL NIL

Date wise Increase / Decrease in 

Promoters Shareholding during the

year specifying the reasons for

increase / decrease (e.g. allotment /

transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.): NIL NIL NIL NIL

At the end of the year NIL NIL NIL NIL

7. Mr. Somayaji

At the beginning of the year NIL NIL NIL NIL

Date wise Increase / Decrease in 

Promoters Shareholding during the

year specifying the reasons for

increase / decrease (e.g. allotment /

transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.): NIL NIL NIL NIL

At the end of the year NIL NIL NIL NIL

VI. INDEBTEDNESS - Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.

Secured Loans

excluding deposits

Unsecured Loans Deposits Total Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of

the financial year
NIL NIL NIL NIL

I) Principal Amount

ii) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL
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Change in Indebtedness at the beginning of

the financial year
NIL NIL NIL NIL

* During the year

* Reduction

Net Change

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

i) Principal Amount

ii) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

39,182,643/-

NIL

NIL

39,180,643/-

NIL

NIL

39,180,643/-

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

39,182,643/-

NIL

NIL

39,182,643/-

NIL

NIL

39,182,643/-

VII. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager

Particulars of Remuneration MD WTD WTDSN

Mr. S Sudhakiran Reddy

Managing Director

Mr.Ramakrishna Bhaskar

Executive Director

Mr.Prakash Tripathi

Executive Director

1 Gross salary  1/- p.m  1/- p.m  1/- p.m

(a) Salary as per provisions 1/- p.m  1/- p.m  1/- p.m

contained in section 17(1)

of the Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) NIL NIL NIL

Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under NIL NIl NIL

section 17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961

2 Stock Option – – –

3 Sweat Equity – – –

4 Commission – – –

-  as % of profit

-  others, specify

5 Others, please specify – – –

Total (A) NIL NIl NIl

Ceiling as per the Act 30,00,000 30,00,000 30,00,000
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B. Remuneration to other Directors

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total (Rs.)

Mr. Nyayapathi Sunder Raj Mr. Sai Ramakrishna

Srivastav Sadasivuni

Ms. Suneeta

Vishnupanthulu

1 Independent Directors NIL NIL NIL NIL

Fee for attending board NIL NIL NIL NIL
committee meetings

Commission NIL NIL NIL NIL

Others, please specify NIL NIL NIL NIL

Total (1) NIL NIL NIL NIL

2. Other Non-Executive Directors NIL NIL NIL NIL

Fee for attending board committee NIL NIL NIL NIL
meetings

Commission NIL NIL NIL NIL

Others, please specify NIL NIL NIL NIL

Total (2) NIL NIL NIL NIL

Total (B)=(1+2) NIL NIL NIL NIL

Total Managerial NIL NIL NIL NIL
Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the Act in Rs. -- -- -- --
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VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of the

Companies Act

Brief

Description

Details of Penalty

/ Punishment/

Compounding

fees imposed

Authority

[RD / NCLT/ COURT]

Appeal made,

if any (give Details)

A. COMPANY

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

NOT APPLICABLE

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

NOT APPLICABLE

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

NOT APPLICABLE

Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel Total (Rs.)

Mr.Somayaji Mr. Rama Krishna Bhaskar

1 Gross salary NIL  3,60,000 NIL 3,60,000

(a) Salary as per provisions – 3,60,000 – --
contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961

b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) – – – --
Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under – – – –
section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961

2 Stock Option – – – --

3 Sweat Equity – – – --

4 Commission – – – --

 -  as % of profit – – – –

  others, specify – – – --

5 Others, please specify – – – –

Total – 3,60,000 – --

 C . Remuneration To Key Managerial Personnel Other Than MD/MANAGER/WTD

CS
(Resigned w.e.f.

30.06.2015)

CEO

–

CFO

( appointed w.e.f. 18.06.2015)
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Annexure D

FORM NO. AOC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties

referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transaction

under third proviso thereto.

1.Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.

S.N. Particulars                                                                                      Details

a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship NIL

b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction NIL

c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction NIL

d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including the value, if any NIL

e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions’ NIL

f) Date of approval by the Board NIL

g) Amount paid as advances, if any NIL

h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in General meeting as required NIL

under first proviso to section 188

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

S.N. Particulars                                                                                      Details

a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship NIL

b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction NIL

c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction NIL

d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including the value, if any NIL

e) Date of approval by the Board NIL

f) Amount paid as advances, if any NIL
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Annexure E

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Company’s Philosophy On Code Of Governance:

Your Company firmly believes in transparency in its dealings and lays emphasis on integrity and regulatory compliance. The Company 

considers good corporate governance a prerequisite for meeting the needs and aspirations of its shareholders.

Size and composition of the Board

Board of Directors comprised of 6 Directors out of which three (3) are Non Executive directors and Three (3) are Executive Directors. 

Out of which Three (3) are Independent Directors. The Composition of the Board is in conformity with the listing requirements.

None of the Directors on the Company’s Board is a Member of more than 10 Committees and Chairman of more than 5 Committees 

across all the Companies in which he is a Director. All the Directors have made necessary disclosures regarding Committee positions 

held by them in other Companies and do not hold the office of Director in more than 10 public companies. The Directors of the 

company are not related inter se.

The Managing Director / CEO has certified to the Board in accordance with Clause 49 (V) of the Listing Agreement pertaining to CEO 

certification for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2015.

A.Attendance of each Director at the Board Meetings and the last AGM held on  20.09.2014

Name of the

Director
Category

Attendance

Particulars

No. of Directorship and other committee

Membership/Chairmanship

No. of shares

held in the

Company as

on 31.03.2015Board

Meeting 

Last AGM
Directorship
in public
limited
companies

Committee
Membership

Chairma-
nship

Mr. S Sudhakiran Reddy

Mr. Nyayapathi Sunder Raj

Mr. Sai Ramakrishna

       Srivastav Sadasivuni

Mr. Prakash Tripathi

Mr. Rama Krishna Bhaskar

Mrs. Suneeta Vishnupanthulu

Managing

Director

Director
(Non –
Executive 
Independent)

Director
(Non –
Executive
Independent)

Director
(Non-Executive)

Director & Chief
Financial Officer 

Additional
Director
(Independent)

4 NA NIL NIL NIL 2,473

8 Yes NIL NIL NIL NIL

8 Yes NIL NIL NIL NIL

6 Yes NIL NIL NIL NIL

8 Yes NIL NIL NIL NIL

1 NA NIL NIL NIL NIL

BOARD MEETINGS AND ATTENDENCE:

Ten (10) Board Meetings were held during the year and the gap between two meetings did not exceed four months.

The dates on which the Board Meetings were held are as follows:

1. 30.05.2014 6

2. 26.07.2014 6

3. 07.08.2014 7

4. 14.08.2014 6

5. 24.09.2014 6

S.No Date of Meeting Board No. of Directors Present

6. 30.09.2014 4

7. 14.10.2014 5

8. 07.11.2014 5

9. 09.02.2015 and 5

10. 24.03.2015 5

S.No Date of Meeting Board No. of Directors Present
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The company has formulated a policy to familiarise the independent directors with the company, their roles, rights, 

responsibilities in the company, nature of the industry in which the company operates, business model of the company, etc., 

through various programmes. The details of such familiarisation programmes are disclosed in the website of the company.

Code of Conduct for Board members and Senior Management

The Board of Directors has laid down the code of conduct for all the Board members and members of the Senior Management 

of the Company. Additionally all independent directors of the company shall be bound by duties of independent directors as set 

out in the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Schedules and Rules there under.

All the Board members and Senior Management personnel have affirmed compliance with the code of conduct.

The Code of Conduct is available on the website of the company.

I. BOARD COMMITTEES

The terms of reference of Board Committees are determined by the Board from time to time. Presently the Company has four 

committees i.e Audit Committee, Nomination, Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee and risk 

management committee. All the decisions pertaining to the constitution of the Committees, appointment of members, and 

fixing of terms of reference for committee members are taken by the Board of Directors. Details on the role and composition of 

these committees, including the number of meetings held during the financial year and the related attendance, are provided 

below:

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee was reconstituted in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and clause 49 of listing 

agreement. The major tasks performed by the audit committee may be grouped under the following heads:

i. The Audit Committee of the Company is entrusted with the responsibility to supervise the Company’s internal controls 

and financial reporting process The Committee acts as a link between the Management, Auditors and the Board of 

Directors of the Company and has full access to the financial Information.

ii. Oversight of the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the 

financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible and ensuring timely submission to statutory authorities.

iii. Reviewing the Management Discussion & Analysis of financial and operational performance.

iv. Reviewing with the management, the quarterly financial statements and annual financial statements and auditor's 

report  thereon before submission to the board for approval.

v. Review the adequacy and effectiveness of the company’s system and internal control.

vi. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems.

vii.To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism.

Composition of Audit Committee

Mr. SRS Srivastav                 - Non-Executive Independent Director   - Member 

Mr. S. Sudha Kiran Reddy   - Managing Director                                    - Member

Mr. Sunder Raj Nyayapati  - Non Executive Independent Director    - Chairman
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Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The terms of reference of the committee are as follows:

1. Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and 

recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other 

employees;

2. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board;

3. Devising a policy on Board diversity;

4. Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in 

accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal.

The remuneration policy as adopted by the company envisages payment of remuneration according to qualification, 

experience and performance at different levels of the organization. 

Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Sunder Raj Nyayapati - Non Executive Independent Director     - Chairman

Suneeta Vishnupanthulu - Woman & Independent Director           - Member

SRS Srivastav - Non-Executive Independent Director    - Member

Stakeholders Relationship Committee

The Company has a Stakeholders Relationship Committee (SRC) of Directors to look into the Redressal of complaints of 

investors such as transfer or credit of shares, non-receipt of dividend/notices/annual reports, etc.

Composition of Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

Sunder Raj Nyayapati - Non Executive Independent Director      -Chairman 

Ramakrishna Bhaskar - Director - Member

Prakash Tripathi - Director – Member

Name, designation and address of the Compliance Officer:

Ms. Akshita Surana

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Sphere Global Services Limited

Plot No. A-52, Journalist Colony,  Jubilee Hills -500033, Hyderabad, Telangana.

Ph: +91 040 23552284/85/86

E-Mail: cs@sphereglobal.in

• During the year the Company received 3 complaints from the investors and all of them were resolved satisfactorily. There 

were no transfers pending at the close of the financial year.
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Details of Director’s seeking appointment or re-appointment

The details in respect Director’s seeking appointment or re-appointment are provided in the notice of AGM.

General Body Meeting

The details of last three Annual General Meeting of the Company held are given below:

Financial Year Location of the Meeting Date Time

Hotel one Place, P.R.R Estate 2-22-298 ,

Behind KPHB Bustop Hyderabad-5000072

Plot No.91 Road No 7B , women Housing Co-operative society,

Jubliee Hills Hyderabad

Plot No.91 Road No 7B , women Housing Co-operative society,

Jubliee Hills Hyderabad

2011-12

2012-13

2013-14

03.11.2012

30.12.2013

20.09.2014

12.00P.M

9.00 A.M

9.00 A.M

An Extra – ordinary general meeting was held on 15.06.2015 for passing of special resolution for issue of 10,00,000 

preferential allotment of warrants

Disclosures

The company has always ensured fair code of conduct and maintained transparency. There were no instances of non-

compliance by the company, penalties, strictures imposed on the company by Stock Exchange or SEBI or any statutory 

authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during the last three years.

In accordance with requirement of Companies Act as well as listing agreement a vigil mechanism has been adopted by the 

board of directors and accordingly a whistle blower policy has been formulated with a view to provide a mechanism for 

employees of the company to approach Internal Auditor or Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company to report any 

grievance. A link to such policy is also provided in the website of the company.

Compliances , rules & regulations as laid down by various statutory authorities has always been observed by the company since 

such change over both in letter as well as in spirit.

All transactions entered into with Related Parties as defined under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement during the financial year 

were in the ordinary course of business and on an arms length pricing basis and do not attract the provisions of Section 188 of 

the Companies Act, 2013. There were no materially significant transactions with related parties during the financial year which 

were in conflict with the interest of the Company. Suitable disclosure as required by the Accounting Standards (AS18) has been 

made in the notes to the Financial Statements.

Compliance with Accounting Standards

In the preparation of the financial statements, the Company has followed the Accounting Standards notified pursuant the 

relevant provision of the Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable Accounting Standards, issued by the Ministry of Corporate 

Affairs. The significant accounting policies which are consistently applied have been set out in the Notes to the Financial 

Statements

Prevention of Insider Trading

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading with a view to regulate trading in securities by 

the Directors and designated employees of the Company.

Means of Communication:

The un-audited quarterly results and audited results for the year are generally published in one English newspaper (Business 

Standard) and at least one vernacular newspaper (Vishalandhra) shortly after its submission to the Stock Exchanges. The results 

are also displayed on the Company’s web-site i.e.

http://www.sphereglobal.in
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a. Annual General Meeting 

Day, date, time and venue Bhavan, Beside Dena Bank, Sanath Nagar, Hyderabad, Telangana 500018

b. Book closure dates From 23.09.2015 to 30.09.2015 (both days inclusive) for the purpose 

of Annual General Meeting.  

c. Tentative Calendar of events  for the

financial  year April, 2015 – March, 2016

is as under: Un-audited Financial Results for

     -First Quarter 30.06.2015-by 2nd Week of August 2015

     -Second Quarter 30.09.2015–by 2nd Week of November 2015 

     -Third Quarter 31.12.2015–by 2nd week of February 2016

     -Fourth Quarter 31.03.2016–by 4th week of May 2016

d. Financial Year From April 1, 2014 to  March 31, 2015

e. Listing of equity shares is at Bomay Stock Exchange Limited.

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400 001.

National Stock exchange Limited*

Exchange Plaza, Bandra kurla complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai-400051

Listing fees for the year have been paid to all the above Stock Exchanges

*The company is under the process of revocation on the NSE.

f. Stock Code 532172 (BSE)

COLOR CHIPS (NSE)

g. Registrar & Share Transfer Agents Venture Capital and Corporate Investments Private Ltd

12-10-167, Bharat Nagar, Hyderabad-500018

Ph: 040-23818475/476    Ph : 040 – 40144967  Fax : 040-23868024

h. Share Transfer System Share transfer requests, which are received in physical form are processed 

and the share certificates returned within a period of 15 (fifteen) days from 

the date of receipt, subject to the documents being in order and complete 

in all respects. Pursuant to Clause 47 (c) of the Listing Agreement with the 

Stock Exchanges, certificates, on half-yearly basis, have been issued for due 

compliance of share transfer formalities by the Company.

i. Location Registered Office:

CIN: L36999TG1990PLC011129

Plot No. A-52, Journalist Colony,  Jubilee Hills -500033, Hyderabad, Telangana.

Ph: +91 040 23552284/85/86

E-Mail: cs@sphereglobal.in     Website: http://www.sphereglobal.in

Subsidiary Office :

Adroit Infotech Private Limited (CIN : U72200PN2000PTC015633)

Reg. Off: Office no.502, 5th Floor, P4,Pentagon, Magarpatta City, 

Hadpsar,Pune, Maharashtra INDIA 411013  (www.adroitinfotech.com)

j. Dematerialisation of shares and Liquidity 1,51,72,926 equity shares of the shareholding have been dematerialized as 

on March 31, 2015.

k. Query on the Annual Report Akshita Surana, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Plot No. A-52, Journalist Colony, Jubilee Hills -500033, Hyderabad, Telangana

Telephone No: 040-23552283/84/85     E-mail:cs@sphereglobal.in

Wednesday, 30th September ,2015 at 02:00 PM  at ICWAI 

General Shareholder Information

Sphere Global Services Ltd
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COMPLIANCE WITH CLAUSE 49 MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS

The Company complied with all the applicable mandatory requirements of Clause 49 of the listing agreement and is also 

submitting a quarterly compliance report duly certified by compliance officer of the company to the stock exchanges within the 

time frame prescribed under regulations.

The Company has also complied with all the other requirements of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchange as well as the 

regulations and guidelines of SEBI. 

MARKET PRICE DATA

High and low during each month from April 01, 2014 to March 31, 2015

During the financial year the equity shares of the Company are traded on Bombay Stock Exchange Limited. The shares are 

suspended from trading in NSE with effect from September 13, 2007 due to penal provisions.

Month HighPrice Low Price No: of shares traded

Jan-14 9.55 7.14 13813

Feb-14 7.61 6.33 7382

Mar-14 8.82 5.78 40955

Apr-14 9.17 5.77 36546

May-14 10 8.1 54769

Jun-14 12.23 9 48511

Jul-14 22.51 11.21 107521

Aug-14 27.1 18.25 108431

Sep-14 26.85 17 89713

Oct-14 38.15 24.5 111335

Nov-14 37.4 26.7 271741

Dec-14 41.2 30.1 560770

Jan-15 40.4 32.75 1156089

Feb-15 51.75 33.5 1089776

Mar-15 44.05 31.1 1031010

Apr-15 46.9 34.6 13813

May-15 51.7 38.45 7382

Distribution of shareholding as on 31st March 2015:

Shares Holders Shares

Number % To Total No Of Shares % To Total

Upto  -    500 10692 95.29 780904 4.47

501  -   1000 279 2.49 212663 1.22

1001  -   2000 122 1.09 177429 1.02

2001  -   3000 44 0.39 111421 0.64

3001  -   4000 11 0.1 38820 0.22

4001  -   5000 10 0.09 44440 0.25

5001  -  10000 20 0.18 139847 0.8

10001 and above 43 0.38 15963348 91.38

Total 11221 100 17468872 100

BSE Trading:

Sphere Global Services Ltd
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GRAND TOTAL (A) + (B) + (C) 11221 17468872 15172926 100.00 100.00 0 0
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Dematerialization of Shares:

The equity shares of the Company are in compulsory Demat segment. The Company has already entered into necessary 

agreements with NSDL and CDSL for Demat facility. As on 31st March 2015, 1,51,72,926 equity shares are in Demat form 

representing 86.86% of total equity share capital of the Company

 Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity:

The Company has not issued any GDRs / ADRs / Warrants / any convertible instruments.

Plant Locations:

The Company does not have any plant locations; however the Company has its IT centre at Plot No. A-52,Road No.70, 

Journalist Colony,  Jubilee Hills -500033, Hyderabad, Telangana

Address for Investors Correspondence:

Shareholders may address their communications/suggestions/grievances/ queries pertaining to share transfer/Demat 

including physical transfer requests and Demat requisition forms, to the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agents and/or 

to the Company at the following address:

Registered Office 

Plot No. A-52,Road No.70, Journalist Colony, 

Jubilee Hills -500033, Hyderabad,

Telangana

Ph No: +91-40-2355 2284/85/86

Fax: +91-40-2355 2283

CIN: L36999TG1990PLC011129

Website: www.sphereglobal.in

Email: cs@sphereglobal.in

 

Registrar and Transfer Agent

M/s. Venture Capital and Corporate Investments Private Ltd

12-10-167, Bharat Nagar, 

Hyderabad-500018.

Ph: 040-23818475/476; 

Fax: 040-23868024.

CEO/MD Certification:

As required by the revised clause 49 (V) of the Listing Agreement, the certificate from MD was placed before the Board of 

Directors at their meeting held on August 5th, 2015.

Compliance Certificate of the Auditors:

The Statutory Auditor has certified that the company has complied with the conditions of the Corporate Governance as 

stipulated in clause 49 of the listing agreement and the same forms part of the Annual Report. The Certificate from the statutory 

auditor will be sent to the stock exchange along with the Annual Report of the Company.

TO WHOMSOEVER IT MAY CONCERN

I , Mr. S Sudhakiran Reddy , the Managing Director of the Company , do hereby declare that all the Board Members and Senior 

Management personnel of the Company have affirmed their compliance on an annual basis with the Code of Conduct as laid 

down by the Company pursuant to the requirements of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreements with the Stock Exchanges.

S Sudhakiran Reddy             

Managing Director                           

DIN: 01436242

Sphere Global Services Ltd
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CERTIFICATION BY MANAGING DIRECTOR UNDER CLAUSE 49 V

OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT

The Board of Directors,

Sphere Global Services Limited

We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement of Sphere Global Services Limited for the year 

ended March 31, 2015 and to the best of our knowledge and belief:

(i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements 

that might be misleading;

(ii) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing 

Accounting Standards, applicable laws and regulations.

(b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year 

which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s Code of Conduct.

(c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have 

evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and have 

disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if 

any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take for rectifying these deficiencies.

(d) We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:

(I) significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

(ii) significant changes in accounting policies made during the year and the same have been disclosed in the notes 

to  the financial statements; and

(iii) instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the 

management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial 

 reporting

Date:  05.08.2015 S. Sudhakiran Reddy 

Place: Hyderabad Managing Director

DIN: 01436242
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Certificate of compliance from Auditors as stipulated under Clause 49

of Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges in India

Certificate

To

The Members of Sphere Global Services Limited 

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Sphere Global Services Limited (“the Company”) 

for the year ended on March 31, 2015, as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the Company with stock exchanges 

in India.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited 

to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of 

Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company has 

complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned Listing Agreement.

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or 

effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

 For Niranjan and Narayan, 

Chartered Accountants,

Firm Regn. No: 005899S

 Sd/-

 P. Venumadhava Rao

Partner                                       

(Membership No:202785)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT:

1. INDUSTRY OVERVIEW:

India’s IT and related services with exponential growth are a unique export led success story which has put India on the global 

Map. While India has achieved a brand identity in this sector, other developing countries are trying to emulate India’s example. 

While the global slowdown, increasing competition from new countries and raising protectionist measures in the wake of job 

losses in developed counties have slightly dimmed the prospects for exports of IT and related services, a great opportunity is 

waiting in India s domestic market with increasing technology adoption within the Government sector and the Small and 

Medium business (SMB) sector, The 12th Five year plan aims to harness the potential of the software and services sector to 

contribute to the country s development and growth, particularly in terms of investment , exports, employment generation and 

contribution to GDP and retain India’s leadership position as global IT- BPO destination, consolidate and grow in both mature 

and emerging markets.

2. BUSINESS

2.1 OVERVIEW

Sphere Global Services Limited is a global software services company providing consulting, IT/ITES (SAP) Application 

maintenance services, Analytics and Hana ,Mobility, Managed infrastructure

2.2 STRATEGY:

The Company’s strategy is to support longer term growth is to continually extend the core IT services business by expanding its 

geographic reach, industry coverage and service capabilities and by deepening existing client relationships, building or 

acquiring emerging businesses and adopting or creating new business models and business solutions become strategic partner 

capable of reliably delivering innovative solutions.

3. OUTLOOK, RISKS AND CONCERNS.

3.1 OUTLOOK: 

In order to meet the changing market realities, your Company has been following the philosophy of providing the highest 

quality products and services at the competitive prices

All endeavors are made to achieve possible cost reduction in every area of operations. 

Your Company’s philosophy to provide high class quality products i.e. value for money to consumers that would greatly benefit 

in the long run. In the otherwise increasing cost arena, every expense, whether capital or revenue is minutely reviewed to 

achieve all possible savings. 

There are many challenges faced by nearly every industry in today's global marketplace The uncertainties in the global market, 

business model redundancy, supply side risks and financial risks are the major threats faced by IT industry.

The Company believes in building and maintaining deep customer relationships and become a  trusted business partner to 

global enterprises. 

3.2 RISKS AND CONCERNS:

The Company has been initiating various risk management programmes to combat strategic, operational and financial as well 

as compliance-related risks across various levels of the organisation. It includes risk assessment and mitigation at the company 

level, business / functional unit level, relationship level and project level. The risk management process is continuously 

improved and adapted to the changing global risk scenario. The agility of the risk management process is monitored and 

reviewed for appropriateness with the changing risk landscape. The process of continuous evaluation of risks includes taking 

stock of the risk landscape on an event driven as well as quarterly basis.

Sphere Global Services Ltd
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4. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has a proper and adequate system of internal control to ensure all the assets are safeguarded and protected 

against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and the transactions are authorized, regarded and reported correctly.

The internal control is supplemented by an extensive program of internal audits, review by management and procedures. The 

internal control is designed to ensure that the financial and other records are reliable for preparing financial statements and 

other data, and for maintaining accountability of assets.

The Company’s Internal Audit Department is regularly carrying out the Audit in all areas. Additionally the Audit committee is 

reviewing all Audit Reports with significant control, all issues raised by internal and external auditing regularly, reports on the 

business development, all the past and the future plans are given to the Board of Directors, Internal Auditor’s reports are 

regularly circulated to all the senior management to comply with the findings.

Normal forcible risks of the Company’s Assets are adequately covered by comprehensive insurances.

5. DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE - STANDALONE.

During the year under review, your company has earned revenue of Rs 966.19 lacs and Loss of 35.56 lacs and consolidated 

revenue of Rs. 1,924 lacs and profit of Rs. 56 lacs.

6. MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES.

During the year under review, the Company has undertaken extensive steps in optimizing the manpower at all locations. 

Employee/employer relations were cordial throughout the year. Measures for safety of the employees, training and 

development continued to receive top priorities. 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Certain statements made in the management discussion and analysis report relating to the Company’s objectives, projections, 

outlook, expectations, estimates and others may constitute ‘forward looking statements’ within the meaning of applicable 

laws and regulations. Actual results may differ from such expectations, projections and so on whether express or implied. 

Several factors could make significant difference to the Company’s operations. These include climatic conditions and economic 

conditions affecting demand and supply, government regulations and taxation, natural calamities and so on over which the 

Company does not have any direct control.

Sphere Global Services Ltd
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I. Significant accounting policies 
 
1.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements 

1.2 Use of estimates 

1.3 Cash Flow Statement 

1.4 Revenue recognition 

1.5 Tangible assets 

1.6 Intangible assets 

 
1.7 Depreciation and amortization 
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Intangible Asset Actual Useful life
 

1.8 Investments 

1.9 Foreign currency transactions 

1.10 Employee Benefits 

1.11 Cash and cash equivalents 

1.12 Earnings per share 

 
1.13 Related party transaction 
 

1.14 Taxes on Income 
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Auditor’s Responsibility 
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ATTENDANCE SLIP  
 

SPHERE GLOBAL SERVICES LIMITED  
(formerly known as Color Chips (India) Limited) 

Registered office: Plot No. A-52, Journalist Colony, Jubilee Hills -500033, Hyderabad, Telangana. 
Tel: +91-40-2355 2284/85/86 Fax: +91-40-2355 2283 Email: cs@sphereglobal.in, website : www.sphereglobal.in 

 
 
 Please fill attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the meeting hall. Joint shareholders may obtain slip at the venue of 
the meeting. 
 
25th Annual General Meeting on ___________________ 
 
Full name of the members attending ____________________________________________________ 
(In block capitals) 
Ledger Folio No./Client ID No. _______________________ No. of shares held: ___________________ 
Name of Proxy _____________________________________ 

(To be filled in, if the proxy attends instead of the member) 

I hereby record my presence at the 25th Annual General Meeting of the SPHERE GLOBAL SERVICES LIMITED at  
of Annual General Meeting on Wednesday 30th September, 2015 at 2.p.m at ICWAI Bhavan, Beside Dena Bank, Sanath Nagar, 
Hyderabad, Telangana 500018,  
 
 
(Member’s /Proxy’s Signature) 

 

Note: 
 
1) Members are requested to bring their copies of the Annual Report to the meeting, since further copies will not be available. 
 
2) The Proxy, to be effective should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less than FORTY EIGHT HOURS 
before the commencement of the meeting. 
 
3) A Proxy need not be a member of the Company. 
 
4) In the case of joint holders, the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in person or by Proxy, shall be accepted to the 
exclusion of the vote of the other joint holders. Seniority shall be determined by the order in which the names stand in the 
Register of Members. 
 
5) The submission by a member of this form of proxy will not preclude such member from attending in person and voting at the 
meeting. 
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PROXY FORM 
SPHERE GLOBAL SERVICES LIMITED  

(formerly known as Color Chips (India) Limited) 
Registered office: Plot No. A-52, Journalist Colony, Jubilee Hills -500033, Hyderabad, Telangana. 

Tel: +91-40-2355 2284/85/86 Fax: +91-40-2355 2283 Email: cs@sphereglobal.in, website : www.sphereglobal.in 
 
 

Form No. MGT-11 
Proxy form 

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014] 

Name of the Member(s)                                     

Registered Address                                              

E-mail Id Folio No /Client ID DP ID 

I/We, being the member(s) of ____________shares of the above named company. Hereby appoint 

Name : E-mail Id: 

Address: 

Signature , or failing him 

 

Name : E-mail Id: 

Address: 

Signature , or failing him 

 

Name : E-mail Id: 

Address: 

Signature , or failing him 

 

as my/ our proxy to attend and vote( on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 25th Annual General Meeting of the 
company, to be held on the Wednesday , 30th September 2015 at 2:00 p.m. at ICWAI Bhavan, Beside Dena Bank, Sanath Nagar, 
Hyderabad, Telangana 500018 of the Company and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated 
below: 
 
 



77

 

 

25th  ANNUAL REPORT 2014-15 

 

 Resolution No. 

Sl. 
No. 

Resolution(S) Vote 

For     Against 

1. TO CONSIDER AND ADOPT THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY FOR 
THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED  31ST MARCH 2015, THE REPORTS OF THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS THEREON AND THE AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015. 

  

2. TO APPOINT A DIRECTOR IN PLACE OF MR. RAMAKRISHNA BHASKAR (DIN: 01620392), 
WHO RETIRES BY ROTATION, AND BEING ELIGIBLE OFFERS HIMSELF FOR 
REAPPOINTMENT. 

  

3. APPOINTMENT OF M/S.NIRANJAN AND NARAYAN, CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS, AS 
STATUTORY AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY 

  

4. APPOINTMENT OF MS. SUNEETA  VISHNUPANTHULU AS INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR OF THE 
COMPANY 

  

5. TO APPOINT MR. S. SUDHAKIRAN REDDY AS DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY.   

6. TO APPOINT MR.  MR. S. SUDHAKIRAN REDDY AS  MANAGING DIRECTOR OF THE 
COMPANY 

  

7. TO PAY REMUNERATION TO  MR.RAMAKRISHNA BHASKAR AS WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR OF 
THE COMPANY 

  

8. TO PAY REMUNERATION TO MR. PRAKASH TRIPATHI AS WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR OF THE 
COMPANY 

  

9. BOARD OF DIRECTORS TO MAKE INVESTMENT IN EXCESS OF THE PRESCRIBED LIMITS   

10. TO ISSUE SHARES UNDER  ESOPS SCHEME   

11. RATIFICATION OF RESOLUTION PASSED AT THE EXTRA-ORDINARY GENERAL MEETING 
HELD ON  15.06.2015 

  

12. INCREASE IN THE BORROWING POWERS OF THE COMPANY   

13. ADOPTION OF AMENDED ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION        

 * Applicable for investors holding shares in Electronic form. 

 

 

 Signed this _____day of _____20______      

         Signature of Shareholder across Revenue Stamp 

 

 Signature of Proxy holder         

 Note: 
 1) This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the 
 Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 
 2) The proxy need not be a member of the company  

 

 

Affix Revenue 
Stamps 
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FORM FOR REGISTRATION OF EMAIL ADDRESS FOR RECEIVING DOCUMENTS / 
NOTICES BY ELECTRONIC MODE 

 
 

To 
Venture Capital And Corporate Investments Private Limited 
12-10-167, 
Bharat Nagar 
Hyderabad, 500018 
 
Company: SPHERE GLOBAL SERVICES LIMITED 

(Formerly known as Color Chips (India) Limited) 
 
 
I agree to receive all documents / notices including the Annual Report from the Company in electronic mode.  Please register my 
email address given below in your records for sending communication through email. 
 
Name of Sole / First Holder : ______________________ 
 
DP ID / Client ID / Regd. Folio No. : ______________________ 
 
PAN No.    : ______________________ 
 
E-mail Address   : ______________________ 
 
 
 
Date: 
Place:                                                                                                                                       (Signature of Member) 
 
 
 

 



79








	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	2015 Annual Report Mail.pdf
	Untitled-1.pdf
	Page 1


	Map.pdf
	Page 4




